
 Public Facilities Committee Agenda 
Tuesday, February 16, 2021 at 3:00 PM 

**OR IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING FINANCE COMMITTEE ** 

ALL OF OUR MEETINGS ARE AVAILABLE FOR VIEWING ONLINE AT 

WWW.BEAUFORTCOUNTYSC.GOV AND CAN ALSO BE VIEWED ON 

HARGRAY CHANNELS 9 AND 113, COMCAST CHANNEL 2, AND 

SPECTRUM CHANNEL 1304 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, 
POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA 
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - JANUARY 19, 2021  
 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

 

6. US 278 CORRIDOR UPDATE 

7. COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE UPDATE (CTC) 

8. UPDATE ON CONVENIENCE CENTER CHANGES AND DECAL SYSTEM 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

 

9. RENEWAL OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT MUTUAL AID 
AGREEMENT WITH THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD FOR COORDINATED FIRE 
RESCUE SERVICES (NO FISCAL IMPACT) 

10. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD FOR IFB #120820E BEAUFORT 
COUNTY ROAD RESURFACING YEAR 4 ASPHALT REJUVENATOR ($201,366) 

11. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD FOR IFB#121720E ROADWAY 

PAVEMENT CONDITION SURVEY ($332,700) 

12. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD FOR IFB #121020E BEAUFORT 

COUNTY ROAD RESURFACING YEAR 4 ($1,607,321) 

13. MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN BEAUFORT COUNTY AND 
THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND (TOHHI) FOR THE SUMMIT 
DRIVE/GATEWAY CIRCLE TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENT PROJECT ($41,066.60) 
 
14. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD OF THE SECURITY GATE UPGRADES AT 

THE HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT ($70,751.91) 

15. RECOMMENDATION TO AWARD ACCESS CONTROL AND SECURITY 

CAMERAS CONTRACT FOR NEW ARTHUR HORNE ($92,274.07) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Facilities 

Committee Meeting 

Chairman 

STU RODMAN  
 

Vice Chairman 
YORK GLOVER 

 

Committee Members 
CHRIS HERVOCHON 
BRIAN FLEWELLING 

MARK LAWSON 

 

Interim County Administrator 

ERIC GREENWAY 

 

Clerk to Council 

SARAH W. BROCK 

 
Staff Support 
JARED FRALIX 

CHUCK ATKINSON 

 
Administration Building 
Beaufort County Government  

Robert Smalls Complex 
100 Ribaut Road 

 
Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 
 

 

1

http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

16. REQUEST TO PURCHASE INSECTICIDE FOR MOSQUITO CONTROL ($92,693.45) 

17. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD FOR IFB #010821 – EVERGREEN REGIONAL POND ($746,602.88) 

18. CONSIDERATION OF PUBLIC FACILITES COMMITTEE 2021 OBJECTIVES  
PLAN DEVELOPMENT/FUNDING STRATEGY/EXECUTION 

TRANSPORTATION PLAN (10 YEAR ) 
SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING PLAN (4 YEAR ) 
COUNTY FACILITIES  
AIRPORTS 
DAUFUSKIE FERRY 
CAPITAL PLAN (10 YEAR)  

 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 

 

19. CONSIDERATION OF THE REAPPOINTMENT OF JOSEPH STROMAN TO THE BEAUFORT COUNTY 
TRANSPORATION COMMITTEE 

3rd TERM - DISTRICT 1 

    1st TERM - 2015 

    2nd TERM - 2017 

20. CONSIDERATION OF THE REAPPOINTMENT OF JAMES BACKER TO THE BEAUFORT COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
COMMITTEE 

2nd TERM - DISTRICT  

1st TERM- 2019 PARTICAL TERM 

21. CONSIDERATION OF THE REAPPOINTMENT OF STEPHEN HILL TO THE BEAUFORT COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
COMMITTEE FOR  

2nd TERM - DISTRICT 9 

1st TERM - 2018 

22. CONSIDERATION OF THE REAPPOINTMENT OF MARC FEINBERG TO THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
UTILITY BOARD  

3rd TERM - STORMWATER DISTRICT #9  

1st YEAR - 2014 

2nd YEAR - 2017 

23. CONSIDERATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF JEFF ALTHOFF TO THE KEEP BEAUFORT COUNTY BEAUTIFUL 
BOARD 

1st TERM - DISTRICT 4 

THE 1st TERM OF SERVICE WILL BE 2 YEARS  
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

 

24. CITIZENS MAY JOIN VIA WEBEX USING THE LINK AND MEETING INFORMATION BELOW:   

MEETING LINK 

2

https://beaufortcountysc.webex.com/beaufortcountysc/j.php?MTID=m535a4c6626029d2912bbb3fd5e2dfbee


County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

Meeting number (access code): 179 899 8755 
Password:  BC123 

(ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the meeting will limit their comments 
to no longer than three (3) minutes ( a total of 15 minutes ) and will address Council in a respectful manner 
appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the use of profane, abusive, or obscene 
language) 

25. ADJOURNMENT 

3



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

PUBLIC FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING

 FEBRUARY 16, 2021
2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN RODMAN 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

PUBLIC FACILITES COMMITTEE MEETING 
• JANUARY 19, 2021

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL FOR PUBLIC FACILITES COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

APPROVE, MODIFY OR REJECT 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

MOTION TO (APPROVE, MODIFY, REJECT) APPROVE PUBLIC FACILITES COMMITTEE MINUTES FROM 
JANUARY 19, 2021. 

4

Item 5.



 Public Facilities Committee Minutes 
Tuesday, January 19, 2021 at 3:30 PM 

 

PRESENT 
Committee Chairman Stu Rodman 
Committee Vice-Chair York Glover 
Council Member Brian Flewelling 
Council Member Joseph F. Passiment 
Council Member D. Paul Sommerville 
Council Member Gerald Dawson 
Council Member Chris Hervochon 
Council Member Alice Howard 
Council Member Mark Lawson 
Council Member Lawrence McElynn 
 
ABSENT 
 

Council Member Logan Cunningham 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Rodman called the meeting to order at 3:57 PM 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chairman Rodman led the Pledge of Allegiance 

FOIA 

Chairman Rodman noted that Public notification of this meeting had been 
published, posted, and distributed in compliance with the South Carolina 
Freedom of Information Act. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion to Amend: It was moved by Committee Vice-Chair Glover, seconded 
by Council Member Howard to add Airport Capital Improvement Program 
(ACIP) list for Beaufort Executive Airport (ARW) and Hilton Head Island Airport 
(HXD). The motion was approved without objection.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The motion was not given to approve minutes for December 21, 2020  
 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

 

Update on Convenience Center changes and Decal System  

Cindy Carter stated  Implementation of operational changes to the Beaufort 
County Convenience Centers as reflected in the Goldsmith report of 
November 2019. New hours and days of operation began October 1, 
2020.Closure of Pritchardville and Gate Centers December 31, 2020.  Decal 
system initiated January 2, 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Facilities 

Committee Meeting 

Chairman 

STU RODMAN 
 

Vice Chairman 
YORK GLOVER 

 

Committee Members 
CHRIS HERVONCHON 
BRIAN FLEWELLING 

MARK LAWSON 

 

Interim County Administrator 

ERIC GREENWAY 

 

Clerk to Council 

SARAH W. BROCK 

 
Staff Support 
JARED FRALIX  

CHUCK ATKINSON 

 
Administration Building 
Beaufort County Government  

Robert Smalls Complex 
100 Ribaut Road 

 
Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 
 

 

5

Item 5.

http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


Public Facilities Committee – Beaufort County, SC 

Status: For Informational Purposes Only 

 

 Airport Capital Improvement Program (ACIP) list for Beaufort Executive Airport (ARW) and Hilton Head 
Island Airport (HXD) 

Jon Rembold stated the National Airports Capital Improvement Plan is an internal FAA document that serves 
as the primary planning tool for identifying and prioritizing critical airport development and associated capital 
needs funding.  

Status: For Informational Purposes Only 

 

Daufuskie Island Ferry Embarkation Update 

Jared Fralix stated on August 1, 2016, Beaufort County entered into a contract with Daufuskie Island Ferry 
Services to provide daily passenger ferry services for Daufuskie Island residents, long-term renters, property 
owners, and County employees. At the time of the agreement the embarkation point was Palmetto Bay Marina.  
Due to hurricane impacts in the fall of 2016 the embarkation point was moved to Bluffton Oyster Factory Park 
initially(October 2016 –January 2017), and then to Buckingham Landing.  The ferry has been using the 
Buckingham Landing location since January 2017. 

Chairman Rodman read the public comments about the ferry. 

Sender: Leanne McJunkin Coulter 

As Chair of the Daufuskie Island Council, I have concerns regarding the RFP that was just proposed by the 
County administration. In section 2.1, the RFP states there are approx. 350 residents living on Daufuskie Island, 
in addition to long term renters and part-time residents. In section 2.1, the required number of parking spaces 
is 35. Current ferry parking for residents and visitors is the number one issue facing the ferry service. The RFP 
does not have any requirements regarding parking lighting, pavement, or a covered shelter space for the 
summer heat or rain. There is no mention of restroom facilities.  

The DI council has repeated volunteered to assist the BC administration to insure necessary items were 
included in the ferry RFP. The requirement of 35 parking spots should be off the table. As a resident of Beaufort 
County, I know the County can issue a better Ferry RFP for the residents of DI. The Daufuskie Island Council is 
asking the Facilities Committee to not accept the contract requirements as written. Please rescind this RFP. 

 Thank you, 

Leanne Coulter, Daufuskie Island Council Chair 

Sender: Steve Hill              

Daufuskie Island Ferry contract on 19 Jan Public Facilities Meeting.  

Beaufort County recently issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for public ferry service to Daufuskie Island. 
Review of the RFP reveals the document contains incorrect information and out-of-date requirements. 
Beaufort County should expect better. Recommend the RFP be retracted and revised. Daufuskie Island Council 
is prepared to assist County staff to capture the most appropriate specifications. 

Status: For Informational Purposes Only 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

 

 Public Facilities 2020 Project List Discussion 

Chairman Rodman ** read Public Facilities Open Issues ** page 11 - 12 

6

Item 5.



Public Facilities Committee – Beaufort County, SC 

Council Member Sommerville asked about Multiple homes on duplexes, multi-plex properties.  

Status: For Informational Purposes only.  

 Pathways Public Meeting No. 1 Summary and Recommendation 

Jared Fralix stated Beaufort County collaborated with NP Strategy, J.Bragg Consulting, Inc., and Infrastructure 
Consulting and Engineering, PLLC. to host the first Pathways Public Meeting virtually from October 19, 2020 
through November 20, 2020. 139 total comments were received regarding the 14 priority pathways 
throughout Beaufort County. After reviewing all feedback received, a recommendation was provided to County 
staff from J.Bragg Consulting, Inc. on a proposed implementation plan. Staff plans to move forward with the 
recommendation as presented. 

Council Member Howard stated a comment provided suggested the pathways be tied into the current park. 
Can this be looked into.  

Jared Fralix stated if this is something the community would like then we can look into this.  

Council Member Lawson asked if Burnt Church Road Project would be delayed. 

Jared Fralix stated it will be delayed.  

Council Member Dawson stated he would like to see sidewalks be done in all districts that are looking for 
improvement.  

Status: For Informational Purposes Only 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

 

 Recommendation of Award for RFQ#092320TE US 21 Corridor Design and Engineering Services 

Jared Fralix stated on August 25, 2020, Beaufort County published a solicitation for design and engineering 
services for the Lady’s Island Access Roads. Seven(7) firms submitted their qualifications for consideration and 
after evaluations from our evaluation team of Jared Fralix, Beaufort County Assistant County Administrator, 
Mike Meetze, J.Bragg Consulting Project Manager, Matt St. Clair, City of Beaufort Director of Public Works, and 
Jennifer Necker, SCDOT Lowcountry RPG Engineer, it was determined that Stantecis most qualified firm for this 
project. The projects included in this recommendation of award are US 21 Corridor; SC 802 Corridor; Beaufort 
high school Realignment. 

Motion: It was moved by Committee Vice-Chair Glover, seconded by Council Member Lawson to Award for 
RFQ#092320TE US 21 Corridor Design and Engineering Services to move forward to County Council for 
approval. The motion was approved without objection.  
 

 Solid Waste and Recycling Enterprise Fund Rate Study – Tischler Bise 

Cindy Carter stated Tischler Bise will present options for a fee associated with the Solid Waste and Recycling 
Enterprise Fund Ordinance. Report dated November 16, 2020.The fee should be established prior to February 
2021 to go into effect for budget year FY22. 

Carson Bise read ** Solid Waste Enterprise Fund ** pgs 32 - 42.  

Motion: It was moved by Committee Vice-Chair Glover, seconded by Council Member Howard to move 
forward to County Council for approval. The motion was approved without objection.  

Decision was reversed to come back later with further discussion  

 An ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of Utility Easement #901093 encumbering property 
owned by Beaufort County. 

7

Item 5.



Public Facilities Committee – Beaufort County, SC 

Jared Fralix stated Beaufort County has been constructing the new Arthur Horne building and requires electric 
service upgrades from Dominion Energy. Dominion energy has agreed to waive the estimated $50,000 
(Transformer and primary feed) cost in exchange for Utility Easement # 901093 to place an additional 
underground primary service feeder from Prince Street to Boundary Street. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Dawson, seconded by Committee Vice-Chair Glover to move 
forward to County Council for approval. The motion was approved without objection.  
 

 An Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of Utility Easement #901094 encumbering property 
owned by Beaufort County. 

Jared Fralix stated Beaufort County is in the process of building the new Arthur Horne Building and is trying to 
maximize space available for future parking. Dominion Energy has recommended placing a transformer east of 
the new building allowing for the elimination of a junction box and removal of the existing feeder. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Dawson, seconded by Committee Vice-Chair Glover to move 
forward to County Council for approval. The motion was approved without objection.  
 

 Recommendation of Award for IFB#120320E Bluffton Library Interior Renovation 

Jared Fralix stated the project consists of re-arranging reading areas within the existing Library including wall 
modification, new finishes, and new flooring. Minor mechanical, plumbing, and electrical is involved. The area 
of disturbance is approximately 60% of the existing facility. Faculty will be able to remain on site. 

Motion: It was moved by  Council Member Howard, seconded by Committee Vice-Chair Glover to move 
forward to county council for approval. The motion was approved without objection.  

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

 

 CITIZENS COMMENTS  

Chairman Rodman read comments previously.  

Sarah Weening, gave comment about intersection on Buck Walter Parkway. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

The meeting adjourned 5:12 PM 

 

8

Item 5.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

US 278 Project Update 

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – February 16, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Craig Winn, SCDOT Program Manager  

(10 mins) 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

US 278 project update for information only 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

For information only 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

N/A 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

N/A 

 

 

9

Item 6.



Modifications to the remaining three bridges;
Improved performance at the major intersections
(Squire Pope, Old Wild Horse, Spanish Wells);
Improved access to Pinckney Island National Wildlife
Refuge; and
Improved access to the C.C. Haigh, Jr. Boat Ramp.

Beaufort County, in coordination with the South Carolina
Department of Transportation (SCDOT), is proposing to
make improvements to the US 278 corridor between
Bluffton and Hilton Head Island, from Moss Creek Drive
to Spanish Wells Road. This would improve the final
segment of US 278 between I-95 and the Cross Island
Parkway. The purpose of this project is to address
structural deficiencies at the existing eastbound MacKay
Creek bridge and reduce congestion along US 278 from
Moss Creek Drive to Spanish Wells Road. The eastbound
Mackay Creek Bridge will be replaced; it was originally
built in 1956 and is scheduled for replacement. Additional
studies for potential improvements include:         

To ensure a detailed analysis of the Stoney Community is
performed and to build community consensus
surrounding the proposed community mitigation items,
the project schedule has shifted. More information on
this can be found in subsequent sections. 

The public hearing and the release of the recommended
preferred alternative will likely occur during late spring
(potentially late May). The project team is hopeful that
during that time the current public health concerns will
have lessened somewhat to allow for in-person
engagement opportunities. However, the project team
will continue to monitor the situation and ask for local
guidance on how best to engage the communities at that
time. Regardless, the team will be prepared to offer a
multi-tiered approach to engagement which will include
extensive online and phone engagement opportunities.

US 278 NEPA Process Schedule

2nd  Public
Information Meeting
September 2019

Project Update

Schedule Update

February 2021

Project Overview

2018 2019 2020
Winter Spring

2021
FallSummerWinter Spring FallSummerSpring FallSummerWinterSpring FallSummer

Technical
Studies

Develop
Alternatives

Analyze
Alternatives

Develop Preferred
Alternative
Prepare
Environmental
Assessment

Public Hearing

Revise Preferred
Alternative

FHWA Decision

1st Public
Information
Meeting
September  2018

Public
Hearing

10

Item 6.



Stoney Community: Engagement

The project team met with the Stoney community five times during the fall of 2020 and has already met with them
once since the beginning of 2021. Those with direct, potential property impacts were invited to participate, in
addition to those representing the Stoney Community in the 278 Stakeholder group and the Town’s Gateway
Committee. Meetings were limited in attendance for the health and safety of the individuals present, and those
invited were tasked with sharing the information they received with their fellow community members. 

March 10, 2020 
Hilton Head Island  Library

Stoney Community Meetings

A series of four, one-hour meetings were held with
the four Stoney families that may experience right-
of-way acquisition. Each family had the opportunity
to meet with the project team individually to allow
for candid conversations to voice their concerns.
Following the project-specific session, the families
were invited to participate in an oral history
interview as part of the Traditional Cultural
Properties evaluation.

August 20, 2020 
Hilton Head Island Rowing & Sailing Center
This meeting started the dialogue about community
enhancement. The project team identified the
potential right-of-way impacts and relocations and
answered related questions. Relocations had been
reduced to two businesses. The topic of community
enhancement was introduced and participants were
asked to brainstorm potential enhancement ideas
with other community members.

September 29, 2020 
Hilton Head Island Rowing & Sailing Center

As requested at the December 8, 2020 meeting, the
project team discussed the additional renderings
that were developed to better understand the
community enhancement ideas that included
signage, an open-air pavilion, a theme-based street,
and multi-use path lighting.  All of the meeting
participants responded favorably to the renderings. 
 Improvements to the access road to the Jenkins
Island Cemetery and the Stewart Family parcels are
still under consideration and coordination is ongoing.

December 8, 2020
Central Oak Grove Church

This meeting explored the previously discussed
community enhancement ideas: signage, an open-air
pavilion, theme-based street and multi-use path
lighting, a community history video/story map,
improvements to the Jenkins Island Cemetery and
the access road for the Stewart Family parcels. The
project team brought example renderings. However,
the project team agreed to bring additional
renderings to better understand the scale the
proposed pavilion and signage options.

January 26, 2021
Hilton Head Island Rowing & Sailing Center

This meeting focused on specific, potential
community enhancement ideas including a Stoney
Community history video, family monuments,
improvements to the Jenkins Island Cemetery, an
access road for properties between the causeway
and Squire Pope Road, and an access/driveway to the
Stewart family properties. Safety concerns in
crossing US 278 (on foot) were also discussed.
Attendees were encouraged to further explore the
discussed community enhancement ideas with their
community and identify additional ideas for the
October Meeting. The project team also toured the
Jenkins Island Cemetery.

October 27, 2020 
Hilton Head Island Rowing & Sailing Center

The project team met with the Stewart family
individually to discuss the proposed driveway to
their property to address the safety concerns. Then,
the larger meeting focused on fleshing out details of
the community enhancement ideas the community
members brought forward. A community member
presented her idea for an open-air, cultural pavilion.
All the participants present agreed that such an item
would be appropriate and welcome. It should focus
on displaying the history and vibrancy of the area.
Additionally, lighting was brought up as a concern.

11

Item 6.



Stoney is one of Hilton Head Island’s historic and
socially connected Gullah communities, which also
include nearby Squire Pope, Spanish Wells,
Jonesville, and Jarvis. To better understand the
Stoney community’s significance as a Traditional
Cultural Property (TCP) and to evaluate its eligibility
for listing in the National Register of Historic Places
(NRHP), oral history interviews with longtime
residents, archival research, and historical landscape
analysis were completed. This work suggests that
Stoney remains central to the Gullah identity
through its long history of Black landownership; as a
cultural gateway to the island; and as a place of
progress, prosperity, and education for the island’s
Black community. At this time, the study is being
finalized and will be submitted to SHPO this month.

Stoney Community: Mitigation Ideas

At the most recent meeting with the Stoney community, the renderings below were provided for additional
conversation. These renderings were created to provide a sense of scale for the potential mitigation ideas at the
request of the community. However, the design of the final products would be created in concert with a design firm
and coordination with the local governments.

Stoney Community: 
Traditional Cultural Property Update

Traditional cultural properties are defined by the South
Carolina Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) as a
“subset of historic properties associated with cultural
practices, traditions, beliefs, lifeways, arts, crafts, and
social institutions of any living community.” 
Learn more here.  

Top: Stoney Community Oystering; 
Bottom:  Mr. Charlie Simmons, Sr., "Cap'n Charlie"

12

Item 6.

https://dc.statelibrary.sc.gov/bitstream/handle/10827/33472/DAH_Traditional_Cultural_Properties_in_South_Carolina_2020-02.pdf?sequence=1&isAllowed=y


A few archeological sites were found during initial project work.
The project team has been coordinating with the State Historic
Preservation Office to determine the best ways to address
these sites. Project impacts to one site located on Pinckney
National Wildlife Refuge could not be avoided. However,
SCDOT proposes to mitigate impacts through an effort to
excavate, preserve, and document the presence and
characteristics of any buried features. The recommended
preferred alternative corridor design should be able to avoid
the  additional two sites.  Each of these areas will be marked as a
"Restricted Area" during construction. SCDOT also commits
that if any significant portions of this site are encountered,
construction activities will be halted and it will be treated as a
late discovery. A memorandum of agreement has been
prepared for FHWA, SCDOT, US Fish & Wildlife Service, the
Catawba Indian Nation Tribal Historic Preservation Officer,
and SHPO as signatories.

Want more information?

Craig Winn, PE, SCDOT Project Manager

info@SCDOT278Corridor.com 
Facebook: SCDOT278Improvements

Twitter @scdot278

Cultural Resources Update

The latest information on the US 278 Corridor Improvements project can always be found on our project
webpage. All information from past presentations is also posted under "Resources." Check it out today!
www.SCDOT278Corridor.com

Utility coordination will be an integral component of the construction of any of the proposed recommendations. To
that end, the project team has been working with all utilities within the project corridor, including separate
meetings with both water/wastewater utilities and Santee Cooper. The discussions to-date have included
confirmation of each utility’s existing facilities, evaluation of any conflicts, and determination of any high-level
relocation costs for each alternative. These ongoing dialogues serve to update utility owners on the corridor study
progress and identify any concerns they have regarding the project impacts to their facilities, including prior rights
discussions.

Utility Update

Map of Hilton Head Island: Before 1861

13

Item 6.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE: 
Renewal of Hilton Head Island Airport Mutual Aid Agreement with the Town of Hilton Head for 
coordinated Fire Rescue Services (no fiscal impact)

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – February 16, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E. ACA – Engineering   

Jon Rembold, C.M. Airports Director (Alternate) 

(5 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

N/A 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 
The Town of Hilton Head and Beaufort County find it desirable to enter into a Mutual Aid Agreement for the 
following purposes: 

• Protection of lives and property within the Town and the County;
• To augment the capabilities of each Department;
• To clarify their respective roles and responsibilities when dealing with emergencies both on and

off of Airport property.
This item was presented to and approved by the Airports Board at the meeting on January 21, 2021. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COMMITTEE: 

Approve the renewal of Hilton Head Island Airport Mutual Aid Agreement 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve the renewal of Hilton Head Island Airport Mutual Aid Agreement with the Town of Hilton 
Head for coordinated Fire Rescue Services. 

Motion to deny the renewal of Hilton Head Island Airport Mutual Aid Agreement with the Town of Hilton 
Head for coordinated Fire Rescue Services. 

(Next Step – move recommendation to County Council on 02/16/21 for action) 

14

Item 9.



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     ) MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT  ) 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ____ day of January 2021 by and between 
the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina (hereafter referred to as the “Town) and the County 
of Beaufort, South Carolina (hereinafter referred to as the “County”).   
 

WHEREAS, the Hilton Head Island Airport, a facility owned and operated by the County, 
lies within the incorporated limits of the Town, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town maintains Hilton Head Island Fire Rescue (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Fire Rescue”) for the purposes of protection of lives and property within the Town and the 
County maintains Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting ((hereinafter referred to as the “ARFF”) for 
similar purposes within the Airport, and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town and County recognize the benefit to the public of these two 
Departments engaging in collective efforts in the areas of planning, training, coordination, and 
response, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town and County find it desirable to enter into a Mutual Aid Agreement to 
achieve this purpose and to augment the capabilities of each Department and to clarify their 
respective roles and responsibilities when dealing with emergencies both on and off of Airport 
property;  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, undertakings and 
covenants set forth herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged and affirmed by 
the Town and the County, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 
1. Aircraft Emergencies Off Airport Property 
 

a. Fire Rescue will have primary responsibility for all aircraft emergencies that occur 
outside the boundaries of the Airport, and within the Town limits. Beaufort County 
Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting (ARFF) will automatically be included on the initial 
dispatch for aircraft events off Airport property.   
 

b. The ARFF resource designated for automatic response is: 
• One (1) Apparatus meeting at least the minimum standard for Index A Class I 

ARFF Response Vehicle. 
• The dispatched apparatus will be identified in Fire Rescue Standard Operating 

Guidelines (SOG) and Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) response assignments.    
 
2. Potential and On Property Aircraft Emergencies 
 

a. ARFF will have primary responsibility for all actual or possible aircraft emergencies 
within the boundaries of the Airport that are not inside a structure.  
 

15

Item 9.



2 
 

b. When notified by Airport Tower staff or another Air Traffic Control Point of an 
inbound aircraft experiencing difficulty, ARFF will: 

• Assign an Alert Level to the event using the criteria below,  
• Advise the Town’s E911 Communications Center of the situation,  
• Request the dispatch of the Fire Rescue resources specified for that Alert Level.   

 
c. Alert Level 1: Indicates an aircraft is having minor difficulties.  A safe landing is 

expected.  
 

• Fire Rescue will not automatically respond to Alert Level I situations 
• Fire Rescue may be requested by the ARFF Incident Commander 

 
d. Alert Level 2: Indicates an aircraft is having major difficulties.  A difficult or crash 

landing may be expected.    
• ARFF will request Fire Rescue resources based on the aircraft. 
• If requested for an Alert Level 2 the Communication Center will dispatch: 

o One (1) Engine Company 
o One (1) Medic Unit 
o Battalion Chief 
o Fire Rescue Command Staff 

• Dispatch will make the following notification 
o Deputy Fire Chief – Operations 

 
If the event becomes a confirmed aircraft accident, the ranking member of Fire Rescue 
present will, establish command and declare a working incident. The Communications 
Center will upgrade the response to an Alert Level 3. 
 

e. Alert Level 3: Indicated that an aircraft has crashed on or off the airport, or there is a 
high probability the aircraft will crash, or the pilot has indicated that the aircraft landing 
gear will not work and, therefore, the pilot will have to crash land on the airport.   
 

• Fire Rescue resources designated for response are:  
o Two (2) Engine Companies 
o Two (2) Medic Units 
o One (1) Truck Company 
o Battalion Chief 

• Dispatch will make the following notification 
o Deputy Fire Chief – Operations 

 
If the event becomes a confirmed aircraft accident, the ranking member of Fire Rescue 
present will, establish command and declare a working incident.  The Working Incident 
declaration will notify all other Fire Rescue Command Staff. 
 
The Incident Commander may request additional Fire Rescue resources as needed. 
 
 
 

16

Item 9.



3 
 

4. Dispatching 
 

a. The Town’s 911 Communications Center shall provide all necessary daily and 
emergency dispatching services to ARFF in compliance with the policies and 
procedures established by the Communications Center, ARFF, and Fire Rescue. 
 

b. ARFF will follow the communications policies/terminology utilized by the Town’s 
E911 Communications Center and Fire Rescue. 
 

5.  Miscellaneous Provisions 
 

a. All Other Type Fires: Fire Rescue will have primary responsibility for all actual or 
possible fires within the boundaries of the Airport except for aircraft emergencies 
outside a structure. ARFF will provide the initial response to all fires and begin 
immediate investigation, suppression and lifesaving actions.    
 

b. Medical Emergencies: Fire Rescue will have primary responsibility for all medical 
emergencies, which occur within the boundaries of the Airport, and shall assume 
command of such responses upon arrival, as necessary.  
 
ARFF will respond to render support and may begin to provide medical assistance 
within the scope of their training and authority when their personnel arrive first on all 
medical emergencies within the airport boundaries. 
 

c. Hazardous Materials Incidents: ARFF will have initial responsibility for all hazardous 
materials incidents, which occur within the boundaries of the Airport.  Fire Rescue will, 
when requested, respond and assume command of the incident, if needed.  
 

d. ARFF will, upon request, assist Fire Rescue in obtaining a Temporary Flight 
Restriction (TFR) over any type of emergency scene when such an action is necessary 
to ensure responder safety or aid in incident stabilization. 
 

e. The rendering of assistance by a responding party under the terms of this Agreement 
shall be without compensation and at no cost to the requesting party.  

 
6. Term 

 
This Agreement shall be effective from the date of execution for a period of one (1) year and 
shall automatically renew for a period of one (1) year unless terminated.  The agreement shall 
not be renewed for a total term of more than five (5) years.   
 

7. Termination.  
  
The Town or County may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part for convenience with 
ninety (90) days prior written notice.  The selected termination date cannot fall during 
Hurricane Season (June 1st through November 30th) unless by mutual agreement. 
 
 

17

Item 9.



4 
 

8. Court Decisions 
 
Should any part of this Agreement be rendered void, invalid, or unenforceable by any court 
of law, such a determination shall not render void, invalid, or unenforceable any other part 
of this Agreement. 
 

9. Governed by South Carolina Law 
 

This Agreement has been made and entered into in the State of South Carolina, and the laws 
of South Carolina shall govern the validity and interpretation of this Agreement in the 
performance due hereunder. 

 
10. Modification of Agreement 
 

This Agreement may not be modified unless such modification is in writing and signed by both 
parties. 

 
11. Assignment of Agreement 
 

Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other party. 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their signatures hereto the date 

first written hereinabove. 
 

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT 
 

                                                 By:                               
            WITNESS   Eric Greenway 
   Interim County Administrator  
                                                   
             WITNESS    
 
 
 
       TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 
 
 
  By:                                                                   
            WITNESS      Joshua A. Gruber 
       Interim Town Manager 
     
           WITNESS      
 
 
 

18

Item 9.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of Award for IFB #120820E Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 4 Asphalt 
Rejuvenator ($201,366) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee - February 16, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, ACA -Engineering 

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

A Pavement condition report was prepared by F&ME Consultants dated July 19, 2017. This report 
serves as a basis for evaluating pavement maintenance and preservation methods for Beaufort 
County roadway network. Based on this report, the following roads were identified in the year 4 
paving plan for asphalt rejuvenator: 

1. Bluffton Parkway – Buckwalter Parkway to Buck Island Road 

2. Buckwalter Parkway – Fording Island Road to May River Road 

Item was approved at the County Transportation Committee Meeting on January 20, 2021. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

On December 08, 2020, Beaufort County received one bid for IFB #120820E, Beaufort County Road 
Resurfacing Year 4 Asphalt Rejuvenator from Pavement Technology, Inc. Analysis of the bid 
submitted revealed no apparent cause of rejection. Technology, Inc. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Pavement Technology, Inc. grand total including alternate is $191,777.00. With a 5% contingency of 
$9,588.00 the total project cost is $201,366.00. The funding for the project is Beaufort County 
Transportation C Funds with a current balance of $2,540,713.00. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff Recommends the award of IFB #120820E to Pavement Technology, Inc.  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of award for IFB #120820E Beaufort County Road 
Resurfacing Year 4 Asphalt Rejuvenator to Pavement Technology, Inc.  

 

(Next Steps – Upon approval, move forward to County Council on 2/22/21 for consideration of 
award recommendation) 

 
19

Item 10.



 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
CAPITAL PROJECTS DEPARTMENT 

2266 Boundary Street, Beaufort, South Carolina 29902 
Post Office Drawer 1228, Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228 

Telephone: 843-255-2700 Facsimile: 843-255-9420 
Website: www.beaufortcountysc.gov 

  
 
TO:  Chairman Kraig Gordon, Beaufort County Transportation Committee  
 
FROM:  Andrea Atherton, Beaufort County Capital Projects Director 
 
SUBJ:  Recommendation of Award to Pavement Technology, Inc.   

Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 4 Asphalt Rejuvenator IFB #120820E 
       
DATE:  January 15, 2021 
 
BACKGROUND A pavement condition report was prepared by F&ME Consultants dated July 19, 2017. This report serves as a 
basis for evaluating pavement maintenance and preservation methods for Beaufort County roadway network. Based on this report, 
the following roads were identified in the year 4 paving plan for asphalt rejuvenator: 
 

1. Bluffton Parkway – Buckwalter Parkway to Buck Island Road 
2. Buckwalter Parkway – Fording Island Road to May River Road 

 
An Engineer’s estimate was prepared based on the costs of the completed Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 3 
project. A summary of the estimate is as follows: 
 
Total Estimated Project Cost:        $477,000.00 
 
BIDDER INFORMATION  
 
On December 08, 2020, Beaufort County received one bid for IFB #120820E, Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 4 Asphalt 
Rejuvenator from Pavement Technology, Inc. Analysis of the bid submitted revealed no apparent cause of rejection. Technology, Inc. 

 
FUNDING Pavement Technology, Inc. grand total including alternate is $191,777.00. With a 5% contingency of $9,588.00 the 
total project cost is $201,366.00.  
 
The funding for the project is Beaufort County Transportation C Funds with a current balance of $2,540,713.00.    
   
FOR ACTION Beaufort County Transportation Committee Meeting January 20, 2021. 
 
RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends award to Pavement Technology, Inc.    
   
 
Attachments: 1. Pavement Technology, Inc. Bid Tab 
                      2. Beaufort County Engineer’s Estimate 

  
 

20

Item 10.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

1/15/2021

Project Name:
Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 4 

Asphalt Rejuvenator
Project Number: IFB 120820E
Project Budget:
Bid Opening Date: 8-Dec-20
Time: 3:00:00 PM
Location: Beaufort County
Bid Administrator: Dave Thomas
Bid Recorder: Victoria Moyer

The following bids were received for the above referenced project:

BIDDER 
BID     

FORM BID BOND
ALL 

ADDENDA
SCH OF 
VALUES

SUB 
LISTING SMBE DOCS Grand Total Price 

Pavement Technology Inc. X X X X X
$191,776.84

Victoria Moyer
Bid Administrator Signature Bid Recorder

Beaufort County posts PRELIMINARY bid tabulation information within 2 business days of the advertised bid opening.  Information on the PRELIMINARY bid tabulation is 
posted as it was read during the bid opening.  Beaufort County makes no guarantees as to the accuracy of any information on the PRELIMINARY tabulation.  The bid 
results indicated here do not necessarily represent the final compliance review by Beaufort County and are subject to change. After the review, the final award will be 
made by Beaufort County Council and a certified bid tab will be posted online. 

21

Item 10.



22

Item 10.



23

Item 10.



24

Item 10.



25

Item 10.



26

Item 10.



27

Item 10.



28

Item 10.



29

Item 10.



30

Item 10.



31

Item 10.



32

Item 10.



33

Item 10.



34

Item 10.



35

Item 10.



36

Item 10.



37

Item 10.



38

Item 10.



39

Item 10.



40

Item 10.



41

Item 10.



42

Item 10.



43

Item 10.



44

Item 10.



45

Item 10.



46

Item 10.



47

Item 10.



48

Item 10.



49

Item 10.



50

Item 10.



51

Item 10.



52

Item 10.



53

Item 10.



54

Item 10.



55

Item 10.



56

Item 10.



57

Item 10.



58

Item 10.



59

Item 10.



60

Item 10.



61

Item 10.



62

Item 10.



63

Item 10.



64

Item 10.



65

Item 10.



66

Item 10.



67

Item 10.



68

Item 10.



69

Item 10.



70

Item 10.



71

Item 10.



72

Item 10.



73

Item 10.



74

Item 10.



75

Item 10.



76

Item 10.



77

Item 10.



78

Item 10.



79

Item 10.



80

Item 10.



81

Item 10.



82

Item 10.



83

Item 10.



84

Item 10.



85

Item 10.



86

Item 10.



87

Item 10.



88

Item 10.



89

Item 10.



90

Item 10.



91

Item 10.



92

Item 10.



93

Item 10.



94

Item 10.



95

Item 10.



96

Item 10.



97

Item 10.



98

Item 10.



99

Item 10.



100

Item 10.



101

Item 10.



102

Item 10.



103

Item 10.



104

Item 10.



105

Item 10.



106

Item 10.



107

Item 10.



108

Item 10.



109

Item 10.



110

Item 10.



111

Item 10.



112

Item 10.



113

Item 10.



114

Item 10.



115

Item 10.



116

Item 10.



117

Item 10.



118

Item 10.



119

Item 10.



120

Item 10.



121

Item 10.



122

Item 10.



123

Item 10.



124

Item 10.



125

Item 10.



126

Item 10.



127

Item 10.



128

Item 10.



129

Item 10.



130

Item 10.



131

Item 10.



132

Item 10.



133

Item 10.



134

Item 10.



135

Item 10.



136

Item 10.



137

Item 10.



138

Item 10.



139

Item 10.



140

Item 10.



141

Item 10.



142

Item 10.



143

Item 10.



144

Item 10.



145

Item 10.



146

Item 10.



147

Item 10.



148

Item 10.



149

Item 10.



150

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of Award for IFB#121720E Roadway Pavement Condition Survey ($332,700) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee - February 16, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, ACA -Engineering 

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

In 2016, Beaufort County contracted with F&ME Consultants, Inc. to perform a Pavement Condition 
Survey (PCS) on the County’s maintained roadway network. A report was provided that included 
information pertaining to the methodology used to perform the PCS and analysis, as well as survey 
results. The PCS information served as a basis for evaluating pavement maintenance and 
preservation methods for the roadway network, and for establishing recommendation for a five-
year, fiscally constrained, pavement maintenance and preservation program. As Beaufort County 
enters year 4 of the five-year program, an update is needed to continue the pavement evaluation 
and management program for maintenance and preservation which has proven successful to date. 

Item was approved at the County Transportation Committee Meeting on January 20, 2021. 

In addition to this program, Beaufort County is evaluating the condition of pavement markings and 
RPM’s on County and Municipal roads to establish a five-year plan. The consultant will provide a 
condition report, priority listing and recommendations for replacement on a yearly basis. 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

On December 17, 2020, Beaufort County received twelve (12) bids for IFB #121720E, Roadway 
Pavement Condition Survey. An evaluation team of Beaufort County Transportation Committee 
members and Beaufort County employees reviewed and scored all firms. The scores can be found on 
the attached Evaluation Score Summary. After a review of proposals, F&ME Consultants, Inc. ranked 
the highest and is deemed the most qualified for the contract. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

F&ME Consultants, Inc. proposed a fee of $272,400 for the Pavement Condition Survey. The funding 
for the project is Beaufort County Transportation C Funds with a current balance of $2,540,713.00. 
At the County Transportation Committee meeting on January 20, 2021 Council recommended that 
the Capital Projects Department does not exceed the proposed fee amount. 

F&ME Consultants, Inc. proposed a fee of $60,300 for the evaluation of pavement markings and 
RMP’s on Beaufort County and Municipal roads. The funding for this project is TAG with a current 
balance of $7,516,852.42. 

151

Item 11.



STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends the award of IFB #121720E Roadway Pavement Condition Survey to F&ME 
Consultants, Inc. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of award for IFB #121720E Roadway Pavement Condition 
Survey to F&ME Consultants, Inc. 

 

(Next Step – Upon approval, move forward to County Council on 2/22/21 for consideration of 
award) 

 

152

Item 11.



 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
CAPITAL PROJECTS DEPARTMENT 

2266 Boundary Street, Beaufort, South Carolina 29902 
Post Office Drawer 1228, Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228 

Telephone: 843-255-2700 Facsimile: 843-255-9420 
Website: www.beaufortcountysc.gov 

  
 
TO:  Chairman Kraig Gordon, Beaufort County Transportation Committee  
 
FROM:  Andrea Atherton, Beaufort County Capital Projects Director 
 
SUBJ:  Recommendation of Award to F&ME Consultants, Inc.   

IFB#121720E Roadway Pavement Condition Survey 
       
DATE:  January 15, 2021 
 
BACKGROUND In 2016, Beaufort County advertised a solicitation to perform a Pavement Condition Survey (PCS) on the 
County’s maintained roadway network. Beaufort County selected F&ME Consultants, Inc. to perform the work and the survey was 
conducted from February 2017 to June 2017. A report was provided that included information pertaining to the methodology used to 
perform the PCS and analysis, as well as survey results. The PCS information served as a basis for evaluating pavement maintenance 
and preservation methods for the roadway network, and for establishing recommendation for a five-year, fiscally constrained, 
pavement maintenance and preservation program.  
 
As Beaufort County enters year 4 of the five-year program, an update is needed to continue the pavement evaluation and 
management program for maintenance and preservation which has proven successful to date.  
 
BIDDER INFORMATION  
 
On December 17, 2020, Beaufort County received twelve (12) bids for IFB #121720E, Roadway Pavement Condition Survey. An 
evaluation team of Beaufort County Transportation Committee members and Beaufort County employees reviewed and scored all 
firms. The scores can be found on the attached Evaluation Score Summary.  
 
After a review of proposals, F&ME Consultants, Inc. ranked the highest and is deemed the most qualified for the contract. 

 
FUNDING F&ME Consultants, Inc. proposed a fee of $272,400. Contingency percentage to be determined by committee.  
 
The funding for the project is Beaufort County Transportation C Funds with a current balance of $2,540,713.00.    
   
FOR ACTION Beaufort County Transportation Committee Meeting January 20, 2021. 
 
RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends award to F&ME Consultants, Inc.    
   
 
Attachments: 1. F&ME Consultants, Inc. Proposal and Fee 
                      2. Evaluation Score Summary 

  
 

153

Item 11.



Roadway Pavement Condition Survey
RFP #121720E

Summary Score Sheet

   Consor ERI ESP Associates F&ME IMS KCI Kercher MDS Roadbotics Stantec Summit Transmap
J. Fralix 82 83 72 84 76 73 90 66 70 79 68 73
A.Atherton 91 47 51 97 38 81 88 63 69 85 57 55
K.Gordon 80 44 75 96 48 40 90 30 45 88 60 50
M. McCain 88 46 50 95 33 50 90 62 42 81 33 53

341 220 248 372 195 244 358 221 226 333 218 231

Consor 341
ERI 220
ESP Associates 248
F&ME 372
IMS 195
KCI 244
Kercher Group 358
MDS Technologies 221
Roadbotics 226
Stantec 333
Summit 218
Transmap 231

154

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY
Proposal
ROADWAY PAVEMENT CONDITION SURVEY

RFP #121720E

DECEMBER 17, 2020 PREPARED FOR
Mr. Dave Thomas
Purchasing Director
Beaufort County
Post Office Box 1228
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901

PREPARED BY
F&ME Consultants, Inc.
1613 Paris Avenue, Suite A
Port Royal, SC 29935

CONTACT
Bryan Bauer, PE
Project Manager
bbauer@fmeconsultants.com
(843) 929-9269

155

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROPOSAL 

A. Executive Summary ..........................................................................................................................1

B. Approach to Development of Roadway Management Plan ..............................................................3

C. Work Plan and Scheduling ...............................................................................................................7

D. Experience and Qualifications ..........................................................................................................8

E. Exceptions and/or Clarifications to the RFP ...................................................................................14

OFFER FORM

PROPOSAL AND CERTIFICATION

156

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 1

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

F&ME Consultants, Inc. and SEPI, Inc., local Beaufort County firms, have partnered with Fugro, the world’s leading 
automated pavement condition survey provider and geo-data specialist, to provide pavement condition survey (PCS) 
services and the corresponding prioritized five-year fiscally constrained pavement maintenance/preservation program. 
Our team is uniquely qualified to provide these services to the County and has intimate knowledge and experience 
working to maintain and improve pavement condition in Beaufort County.

TEAM INTRODUCTION

F&ME Consultants, Inc. (FME) is a South Carolina owned and operated engineering firm established in 1980 with a 
Lowcountry office in Beaufort County, headquarters in Columbia, and an operations center in Chester. For 40 years, 
FME has been providing geotechnical engineering, environmental consulting, materials testing, and construction 
services to a diverse client base that includes municipalities, counties, state and federal agencies, educational 
institutions, and commercial and private entities. 

SEPI, Inc. (SEPI), a full-service engineering, land planning, land development, environmental, infrastructure design, 
geomatics, construction inspection and asset management and maintenance consultancy, with a local office in 
Beaufort County and headquartered in Raleigh, North Carolina. Sepi Saidi, PE founded the firm in 2001 and has 
transformed the organization to be a premier multi-disciplinary engineering firm ranked annually in the Engineering 
News-Record (ENR) Top 500 Design Firms with a mission to serve public and private clients as a trusted resource, 
contribute to projects that improve the quality of life in its communities, and provide a rewarding employee experience 
through its diverse and inclusive team culture. 

Fugro is currently under contract with South Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) to provide automated 
pavement condition surveys statewide and is the world’s leading automated pavement condition survey provider and 
geo-data specialist; collecting and analyzing comprehensive information to help clients operate their assets in a safe, 
sustainable, and efficient manner. With over 50 years of experience, they offer a broad range of expertise, and a 
proven track record of delivering innovative customized end-to-end solutions. Fugro’s solutions and advice allow 
clients to optimize maintenance programs and extend the life of assets.

  A. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

157

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 2

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

The FME/SEPI team knows that in 2017, Beaufort County made the proactive commitment to conduct a comprehensive 
roadway pavement evaluation of its paved road network in order to improve the decision-making process for pavement 
maintenance/preservation activities. This leadership not only removed much of the subjective and random decision 
making relative to which roads receive maintenance/preservation, it established a decision making process based 
upon data with the objective of optimizing scarce available funding, while still achieving the maximum pavement 
quality improvement possible. Our team knows that the County desires to continue to utilize a data driven approach 
that optimizes scarce funding. FME was excited to work with the County in 2017 to build the foundation of this 
proactive data driven process that maximizes the impact of the available funding. FME would be honored to have the 
opportunity to continue on the path that the County set out upon in 2017. We do not assume that because we did the 
previous work we will be selected again. As a result, we have expanded our depth of resources and experience by 
including SEPI and Fugro on our team.

When studying the provided scope of work, we identified that the County has included the evaluation of municipal 
and possibly state secondary roads. This reinforces the County’s proactive approach and commitment to improving 
the overall condition of roads in the County by establishing a data-based benchmark of these roads as well. Our team 
has the ability and depth of resources to successfully take on all of the roads identified in the request for proposal.

There are numerous challenges that we will successfully take on in order to create reliable and resilient pavement 
maintenance/preservation recommendations. One of the central and fundamental challenges is the quantity and 
accuracy of the pavement condition survey data. The automated pavement condition survey generates a tremendous 
amount of data and there must be an active method for managing and quality control of the data. FME/SEPI, in 
partnership with Fugro will collect, manage and provide quality control of the data. Another notable challenge will be 
to balance the purely data driven process with broader locally influenced objectives. Our presence in the local market 
will facilitate our ability to work seamlessly with the County to identify and quantify these broad objectives.  

The FME/SEPI team has a vested interest in improving and maintaining the transportation infrastructure of Beaufort 
County and will work hard to optimize the available funding to accomplish this objective.

Because of our past experience working with the County in 2017 we have a clear understanding of the scope of work presented 
in the request for proposal. In the project approach to follow we have addressed how we will accomplish each of the following 
segments of the scope of work. 
 ▪ Pavement condition survey
 ▪ Pavement maintenance and preservation options
 ▪ Prioritized five-year fiscally constrained pavement maintenance and preservation program
 ▪ Comprehensive report
 ▪ Recommendations for pavement maintenance management software

158

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 3

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

PAVEMENT CONDITION SURVEY
The backbone of an effective and efficient pavement maintenance/preservation program is pavement condition data. 
Pavement condition data can be obtained manually with boots on the ground, which is expensive and time intensive, 
or with automated equipment. To be efficient and timely our team has elected to utilize automated equipment to collect 
the pavement condition data. We have selected Fugro, who is currently under contract with SCDOT to collect statewide 
pavement condition data with their automated equipment. Fugro is the world’s leading automated pavement condition 
survey provider and geo-data specialist with over 50 years of experience. Fugro will utilize their Automatic Road 
Analyzer (ARAN), equipped with cutting edge gyroscopes, sensors, cameras, computers, and software to collect 
pavement condition data. In addition to collecting pavement condition data the ARAN has the ability to utilize Sony 
high-definition broadcast quality cameras to capture road right-of-way data and pavement images. These images will 
be utilized to evaluate the condition of both reflective and non-reflective pavement markings if desired. Other added 
benefits of utilizing the ARAN include the ability to utilize ground penetrating radar (GPR) to obtain thickness of in-
place asphalt or concrete if desired. This could provide beneficial information to the County and provide valuable data 
for evaluating pavement preservation/maintenance options. 

SCDOT utilizes Pavement Quality Index (PQI) as a means 
to describe the condition of their pavements. PQI provides 
a roadway rating ranging from zero to five. PQI takes into 
account pavement distresses for both asphalt and concrete 
paving in the form of Pavement Distress Index (PDI) and 
Pavement Serviceability Index (PSI) which is a function of roughness. Most distresses used in calculation of PQI are 
given a severity rating (Low, Moderate, High) and the PDI is calculated based on the severity and extent of distresses. 
PSI is a function of the International Roughness Index (IRI). Fugro will collect distresses and data pertinent to PQI and 
FME/SEPI will calculate the PQI using the formula currently utilized by SCDOT. 

The members of our team are intimately familiar with this process due to recent past experience. Their combination 
of perspective, technical ability, skill and experience will be a great asset to the County. Bryan Bauer, PE, worked 
extensively on the five-year pavement maintenance/preservation program that is currently in progress and being 
implemented. As the Project Manager, Bryan has a clear understanding of the County’s objective due to his past 
experience. As the Assistant Project Manager, Rob McFee, PE, has the benefit of many years of experience serving 
in an infrastructure leadership role with Beaufort County. Jay Thompson, PE, who previously served as the State 
Pavement Engineer for SCDOT, has a high level of skill and experience assessing/managing pavements throughout 
South Carolina. 

Quality control of the pavement condition data provided by Fugro will be performed by manually obtaining pavement 
condition data on a sampling of roads and comparing this data to the automated pavement condition data provided 
by Fugro. Jay Thompson, PE, and Andy Whitfield, PE, both with years of hands-on experience assessing pavements, 
will be among the team of boots on the ground obtaining the sampling of manual pavement condition data. This 
process will assure that the automated pavement condition data is representative of the actual conditions in the field.

Our team will then incorporate the collected distress data and calculated PQI into an ArcGIS geodatabase. FME 
developed and provided the geodatabase to the County for the current in progress pavement maintenance/
preservation program. The geodatabase will be formatted in a similar manner as previously provided and will display 
layers showing specific locations and severity level of each distress, overall PQI rating of each roadway, and the data 

  B. APPROACH TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE ROADWAY MANAGEMENT PLAN

159

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 4

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

collection path traveled by the ARAN. Distresses and PQI ratings will be color coded based on severity or rating, 
respectively. Our team will work with Beaufort County to assure that the provided geodatabase can be uploaded into 
the County's online GIS web map.

After collection of roadway distress data and the development of PQI, our team will provide a summary of findings for 
the road network. We will include an overall summary of pavement quality, a breakdown of how many lane miles fall 
into each quality classification (very 
poor, poor, fair, good, and very good), 
a breakdown of the distress types 
encountered and severity. For the 
roads that received attention under the 
County’s current in progress five-year 
pavement preservation/maintenance 
program a comparison of PQI will be 
made to show how the PQI has 
changed. This comparison will add 
considerable value and perspective 
for the County.    

PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE AND PRESERVATION OPTIONS
Based on PQI and pavement life cycle, we will select pavement preservation/maintenance options for each road. Our 
team will select pavement preservation/maintenance that will improve the roadway condition and extend the 
pavement’s serviceable life which optimizes available funding. We will accomplish this by selecting appropriate 
pavement preservation/maintenance options based upon the distresses recorded for each road and where it falls in 
the pavement life cycle curve. We will then explore possible treatment types applicable to each road based on 
availability in the local market and effectiveness. 

Our team will use SCDOT construction cost data, including bid data from lettings, and bid data from the County as 
well as the team’s extensive experience to develop  construction cost estimate for each road. The cost estimates will 
include the total cost of road improvements to include the preservation treatment, any selective treatments like full 
depth patching of failing areas and any additional costs like line striping per County requirements. 

We will then conduct a cost benefit analysis and select a preferred pavement preservation/maintenance option for 
each road. The preferred option will be the one that 
results in the largest pavement life cycle increase 
per dollar based on the cost benefit analysis. After 
determining the preferred preservation maintenance 
option and construction estimate for each road we 
will prepare an initial prioritized list of roads. Roads 
will be prioritized based on the impact on pavement 
life cycle achieved by performing the selected 
treatment. 

The data driven process used to create the initial prioritized list will be based on the cost-benefit analysis comparing 
the life cycle increase to the cost of treatment. 

160

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 5

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

FIVE YEAR FISCALLY CONSTRAINED PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE AND 
PRESERVATION PROGRAM
Our team knows that the County’s primary objective is to develop a prioritized pavement maintenance/preservation 
program that is formulated to maximize the effectiveness of the available annual County Transportation Committee 
(CTC) funding for a five-year period. In addition, we understand that the CTC wants the prioritization to be based on 
objective facts and data, as opposed to purely subjective factors that may not have broad acceptance. We aim to 
develop a five-year fiscally constrained pavement maintenance/preservation program that will proactively improve the 

condition of the roads within the County and extend the 
life cycle of the pavement whereby optimizing available 
funding. FME knows this process and understands the 
objective because we have performed this work in the 
past for the County. As a local business with local teaming 
partner, SEPI, we have a vested interest in improving the 
County road network and wisely investing the available 
CTC funding to extend the life cycle of the County’s 
transportation assets. 

Our team will work with the County to identify matrix 
variables beyond pavement condition and the maximum 
extension of pavement life cycle to further refine the order 
of priority. These matrix variables are often, average daily 
traffic (ADT), economic development, socioeconomic, 
location of schools and churches, and population density, 
just to name a few. Values for these identified matrix 
variables will be assigned with input from County staff 
for each road, and utilized to adjust and refine the order 
of priority. 

Prioritization purely based upon pavement condition and 
extension of life cycle, and then refining the priority based upon broader objectives, will result in an effective program 
with very clear and defined objectives. The final result will be a five-year pavement maintenance/preservation program 
listed in order of priority with cost estimates for each project that is tailored to fit the available annual CTC funding for 
a five-year period. 

COMPREHENSIVE REPORT
At the end of our analysis our team will deliver a comprehensive report to the County. The report will include 
background information on pavement management and evaluation, a detailed discussion of the methodology used for 
data collection, methodology used for determining pavement treatment preferences and to create the five-year fiscally 
constrained pavement management program. In the report we will provide a prioritized five-year fiscally constrained 
pavement maintenance and preservation program.

161

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 6

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE
Pavement maintenance management software systems can provide a consistent, repeatable, data driven solution 
to pavement maintenance/preservation and come in a wide array of options and configurations, but there are vast 
differences in the products available. Many systems can accommodate the uploading of manually or automated 
collected pavement condition data, create priority rankings based upon specific rating systems, and determine multi-
year treatment plans based upon criteria and decision trees created by the user. Additionally, some systems have 
tablet applications that can be used to manually rate a road, QC collected data, or update road condition between 
normally scheduled data collection cycles. Selecting a software that meets the needs of the County from a technical 
and management perspective, as well as providing the County a clear understanding of reoccurring software 
operation/maintenance resource requirements is vitally important. The FME/SEPI team has the depth of experience 
to help Beaufort County select a management software that can be actively used and maintained, and not ‘put on the 
shelf’ in one or two years. 

Having team members like Jay, Rob, and Bryan makes our  team uniquely qualified to identify and recommend a 
pavement maintenance management software system to be utilized by the County going forward. These individuals 
have extensive knowledge and experience regarding pavements. As the former State Pavement Engineer for SCDOT 
Jay has utilized and has experience with multiple software programs, that are designed to manage pavement condition 
and maintenance. Rob has the benefit of many years of experience serving in an infrastructure leadership role with 
Beaufort County which provides unparalleled perspective that no other consultant can provide to the County. Bryan 
worked extensively on the previous five-year pavement maintenance/preservation program that is currently being 
implemented. All three have different types and levels of experience and perspective that will contribute tremendously 
to identifying the best software for the County.

162

Item 11.



EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E   PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 7

The Gantt chart to follow provides tasks, durations and sequence of the work to accomplish the project approach described herein. The prioritized five-year 
fiscally constrained pavement maintenance and preservation program for county and municipal roads can be delivered to the County 6 months after notice to 
proceed. The FME/SEPI team will work with the County on identifying and recommending a pavement maintenance management software after the submission 
of the prioritized five-year fiscally constrained pavement maintenance and preservation program. This portion of the scope of work will extend beyond the 
specified 6-month time frame.

  C. WORKPLAN & SCHEDULING

163

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 8

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

Our team consists of highly qualified and experienced 
professionals that can and will provide a high  level 
of service to the County. The experience, skill, and 
perspectives of each of these individuals mesh 
together to provide a uniquely qualified and highly 
capable team. 

PROJECT MANAGER

Bryan Bauer, PE FMEASST. PROJECT MANAGER
Rob McFee, PE, MPA SEPI

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT
Stephanie Sullivan FME

PAVEMENT CONDITION SURVEY
Benjamin Ong FUGRO

PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE/ 
PRESERVATIONS OPTIONS,  

COST ESTIMATES
Bryan Bauer, PE FME

Jay Thompson, PE SEPI

Rob McFee, PE, MPA SEPI

PAVEMENT TECHNICAL RESOURCE 
QUALITY/ CONTROL OF PQI

Jay Thompson, PE SEPI

Andy Whitfield, PE FME

ARC GIS
John Wisdom SEPI

5 YEAR FISCAL CONSTRAINED 
PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE / 
PRESERVATION PROGRAM

Bryan Bauer, PE FME

Rob McFee, PE, MPA SEPI

Jay Thompson, PE SEPI

Shawn Epps FME

PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE
Shawn Epps FME

  D. EXPERIENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

Key factors that the County should keep in mind when 
evaluating our team is as follows:
 ▪ The project manager and assistant project manager are both 
citizens of Beaufort County and have a vested interest in 
improving the transportation infrastructure of Beaufort County 
in addition to being highly qualified. 

 ▪ Benjamin Ong, of Fugro, is currently working with SCDOT 
providing pavement condition surveys on a statewide basis. 

 ▪ Jay Thompson, PE, is the former SCDOT State Pavement 
Design Engineer and has assessed/implemented a wide 
range of maintenance/preservation recommendations for 
pavements throughout South Carolina.

 ▪ Bryan Bauer, PE; Rob McFee, PE; and Shawn Epps worked 
extensively on the development of the current Beaufort 
County pavement preservation/maintenance program.

164

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 9

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

BRYAN BAUER, PE
PROJECT MANAGER

Bryan will serve as Project Manager under this contract. 
With his experience performing pavement condition 
surveys (both concrete and asphalt), he will provide 
project management and lead the effort in completing 

the pavement condition survey for Beaufort County. Bryan has a broad base 
of experience that includes performing geotechnical explorations, conducting 
pavement assessments, performing engineering calculations and design, and 
preparing engineering reports. Bryan worked extensively on development of 
Beaufort County’s current in progress pavement maintenance/preservation 
program and is very familiar with SCDOT's Pavement Design Guidelines and 
Pavement Quality Index (PQI) Formula, as well as the ASTM D6433-11 Standard 
Practice for Roads and Parking Lots Pavement Condition Index Surveys.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
 ► 2017 Beaufort County Pavement Condition Survey | Beaufort County, SC
 ► Oldfield Development | Beaufort County, SC
 ► 2017 Beaufort County Dirt Road Paving Program | Beaufort County, SC
 ► Waterleaf at Battery Creek | Beaufort County, SC

ROB MCFEE, PE, MPA
ASSISTANT PROJECT MANAGER

As Assistant Project Manager, Rob has the benefit of many 
years of experience serving in an infrastructure leadership 
role with Beaufort County which provides unparalleled 
perspective that no other consultants can provide to the 

County. He interfaced seamlessly with Bryan Bauer and Shawn Epps of FME 
during the development of Beaufort County’s current in progress pavement 
maintenance/preservation program. Rob has developed and managed numerous 
roadway pavement preservation programs and as a former SCDOT Resident 
Engineer, he has hands on field experience with field implementation of multiple 
pavement maintenance/preservation techniques.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
 ► Beaufort County Dirt Road Paving Program | Beaufort County, SC* 
 ► Pavement Maintenance Program (Resident Maintenance Engineer) | Beaufort County, SC* 
 ► Full Depth Reclamation/Full Depth Patching Program | Beaufort Colleton and Jasper County, SC*
 ► Pavement Maintenance Program (Director of Engineering and Infrastructure) | Beaufort County, SC* 

*personal experience with previous employer

F&ME CONSULTANTS, INC.

EXPERIENCE HIGHLIGHTS
 ▪ 7 years of experience
 ▪ B.S. in Civil Engineering
 ▪ Professional Engineer 
South Carolina (#36270)

CERTIFICATIONS
SCDHEC Erosion Prevention & 
Sediment Control Inspector
SCDOT Asphalt Roadway 
Technician; Earthwork and Base 
Course Technician: Nuclear 
Gauge Hazmat

TRAININGS
NHI Asphalt Pavement 
Preservation Treatment Series 
(Modules A-K)
USDOT & IATA HAZMAT

SEPI

EXPERIENCE HIGHLIGHTS
 ▪ 33 years of experience
 ▪ Master of Public Administration
 ▪ B.S. in Civil Engineering
 ▪ Professional Engineer 
South Carolina (#16229)

 ▪ Former SCDOT Resident 
Construction & Maintenance 
Engineer

 ▪ Former Beaufort County Director 
of Public Services

 ▪ Former Beaufort County 
Division Director of Engineering, 
Construction, and Facilities

165

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 10

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

JAY THOMPSON, PE
PAVEMENT TECHNICAL RESOURCE

Jay Thompson’s experience serving as the SCDOT State 
Pavement Design Engineer provides him with unparalleled 
experience, skill, knowledge and perspective relative to 
maintenance/preservation of pavements. He has extensive 

experience with pavement design and pavement asset management in South 
Carolina. He has been responsible for pavement design and construction support 
on numerous notable projects including design-build and bid-build widenings, 
reconstruction, and preservation of the interstate system in South Carolina. His 
pavement design and construction experience coupled with his knowledge and 
experience assessing and managing pavement condition on a statewide basis 
make him an important member of the team.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
 ► Pavement Condition Survey Data Collection 2020 | Wake Forrest, NC
 ► Pavement Condition Survey 2020 | Pembroke, NC
 ► Support for Statewide Full Depth Reclamation/Resurfacing/Preventative Maintenance Programs SCDOT 
2014-2020| Various Locations, SC
 ► Cold-In-Place Recycling Pavement Design Value Engineering | US 123 Clemson, SC

BENJAMIN ONG
PAVEMENT CONDITION SURVEY

Ben currently serves as the project manager for Fugro’s 
pavement condition survey contract with SCDOT. As 
a result, he is intimately familiar with the practices and 
procedures that SCDOT utilizes to arrive at pavement 

quality index (PQI) for roads in South Carolina. Ben has 9 years of experience 
with pavement and asset data collection, pavement engineering, Geographic 
Information Systems (GIS), spatial data solutions, and data analysis. He has in- 
depth knowledge of Pavement Management System (PMS)s; both commercial and 
in-house software applications. Ben has been involved in many aspects of roadway condition data collection projects 
including data processing and analysis and database querying and maintenance. His broad base of knowledge and 
experience include the use of lidar for asset inventory and condition assessment and 3D Laser Crack Measurement 
System (LCMS) data collection, analysis, and pavement rating as part of a joint study with the University of Texas 
Center for Transportation Research.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
 ► SCDOT Professional Pavement Data Collection Services 2018-2022 | Statewide, SC
 ► NMDOT Pavement Condition Data Collection 2018-2022 | Statewide, NM
 ► Ramp Inventory, Pavement Condition Survey and Analysis 2018-2020 | City of Los Angeles, CA 
 ► MDOT Network Level Semi-Automated Pavement Surface Condition Surveys 2012-2018 | Statewide, MI

SEPI, INC.

EXPERIENCE HIGHLIGHTS
 ▪ 16 years of experience
 ▪ M.S., Civil Engineering
 ▪ B.S., Civil Engineering
 ▪ Professional Engineer 
South Carolina (#27041)

 ▪ Previously served as SCDOT 
State Pavement Design 
Engineer

 ▪ SCDOT Interstate System 
(2014-2020)– Preventative 
Maintenance

 ▪ Previously served as SCDOT 
Resident Construction Engineer 
in Lexington

FUGRO

EXPERIENCE HIGHLIGHTS
 ▪ 9 years of experience
 ▪ Graduate Certificate (GIS)
 ▪ B.A. Sc. in Environmental 
Engineering

 ▪ Currently serves as the Project 
Manager for Fugro’s pavement 
condition survey contract with 
SCDOT

166

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 11

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

ANDY WHITFIELD, PE
PAVEMENT TECHNICAL RESOURCE

Andy has 18 years of experience that includes hands on 
assessment of pavements and their subgrades as well as 
pavement design. Andy’s broad base of experience also 
includes a range of geotechnical services, from preliminary 

design through completion of the construction phase. He has performed  
subsurface investigations, conducted materials laboratory testing, developed geotechnical design recommendations, 
authored geotechnical reports, and performed quality assurance/quality control inspections and testing on projects 
Statewide. 

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
 ► 2017 Beaufort County Dirt Road Paving | Beaufort County, SC
 ► Oldfield Development | Beaufort County, SC 
 ► Riverview Road Improvements Pavement Exploration | York County, SC 
 ► 2019 & 2018 Allendale County CTC Paving | Allendale County, SC 

SHAWN EPPS
PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE

Shawn, Vice President of FME, will serve as Principal-
in-Charge under this contract and will provide broad 
project oversight and administration. Shawn worked on 
development of Beaufort County’s current in progress pavement maintenance/preservation 

program and interfaced directly with Beaufort County staff and CTC board members to assure that FME’s work 
product met the County’s objectives. He will assist with contract negotiations and confirm that the teamwork effort 
is consistent with the County’s objectives. With 25 years of civil design, structural design, and project management 
experience, he has managed projects from a design, construction, and financial perspective for clients ranging from 
local governments to private developers. Shawn's knowledge of the design and management of public transportation 
projects has provided him with the skills necessary to keep projects on time and within their budgets. His ability to 
clearly communicate with clients and staff and develop concise project goals and budgets make him an asset to any 
project.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
 ► 2017 Beaufort County Pavement Condition Survey | Beaufort County, SC
 ► Spanish Moss Trails | Beaufort County, SC
 ► Bluffton 5A Flyover | Beaufort County, SC
 ► 2018 Beaufort County Penny Program Management | Beaufort County, SC

F&ME CONSULTANTS, INC.

EXPERIENCE HIGHLIGHTS
 ▪ 18 years of experience
 ▪ B.S. in Civil Engineering
 ▪ Professional Engineer 
South Carolina (#25934)

F&ME CONSULTANTS, INC.

EXPERIENCE HIGHLIGHTS
 ▪ 25 years of experience
 ▪ B.S. in Civil Engineering

167

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 12

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

SIMILAR PROJECT EXPERIENCE & REFERENCES
Our Team has a clear understanding of the scope of services to be provided to meet the County’s objectives. We offer 
the County unparalleled project experience, key personnel qualifications, and local expertise.

 

F&ME CONSULTANTS, INC.

PAVEMENT CONDITION SURVEY | Beaufort County, SC 2017
Kraig Gordon | CTC Chairman | Beaufort County | (843) 757-8719   | kgordon@gordonconst.com
FME was hired by Beaufort County to collect physical data on the paved roads in the County and develop a five-year fiscally constrained 
pavement management program. FME accomplished this by teaming with Data Transfer Solutions, LLC (DTS) to perform a Pavement Condition 
Survey on the County's maintained roadway network. Using a mobile asset collection (MAC) vehicle, DTS collected physical data on the paved 
roads and established a Pavement Condition Index (PCI) on approximately 204 centerline miles of roadway specified by the County. The 
survey was conducted using the International Roughness Index (IRI) and a surface profiling system manufactured by International Cybernetics 
Corporation (ICC). 
FME then analyzed the data, utilizing SCDOT's methodology, and assigned a Pavement Quality Index (PQI) rating to each roadway segment. 
The resulting PQI and Average Daily Traffic (ADT) count for each segment was used to establish a priority ranking order for the pavement 
management program. As a quality assurance effort, FME conducted a manual field investigation of a sample of roads to assess the accuracy 
of the electronic measurements obtained by the MAC. 
The five-year, fiscally constrained pavement management program recommended by FME has been approved and accepted by Beaufort 
County and is being implemented by the Beaufort County Transportation Committee (CTC). The program includes pavement preservation, 
maintenance techniques and cost estimates.
OLDFIELD DEVELOPMENT | Beaufort County, SC In-Progress
Frank O'Sullivan | Oldfield Community Association | (843) 645-4600 | frankosullivan47@aol.com
FME performed a pavement exploration to determine the existing asphalt and graded aggregate base course (GABC) thicknesses at locations 
within Oldfield Club in Okatie, South Carolina. The reason for the exploration was that the ownership of the roadway system was about to pass 
from the developer to the Oldfield Community Association, and the Association wanted to determine if the pavement met design details. 
FME’s exploration consisted of cutting asphalt cores along the alignment of the Club’s road system and measuring them for thickness. Using this 
data and field observations, FME recommended a maintenance program that will extend the life of the pavement, to include patching of failing 
areas, grass removal for drainage improvement, stabilizing utility trenches and/or sunken areas, seal coating and crack seal of the roadway, and 
hot mix asphalt overlay. 
FME was then retained to prepare special provisions and technical specifications for pavement repair and improvements to three roadways 
within the subdivision – Colonel Hazzard Road, Rice Mill Road, and Wigg’s Lane. Improvements consisted of full-depth patching of deficient 
areas, milling of tie-ins to existing drives and intersecting streets, hot mix asphalt resurfacing, and installation of asphalt rejuvenation course. 
During construction, FME provided contract administration, materials testing, and observation on an on-call basis. FME has been engaged to 
help administer annual resurfacing and pavement programs since inception.
Dirt Road Paving  | Beaufort County, SC 2017
Andrea Atherton | Capital Improvements Manager | Beaufort County | (843) 255-2693  | aatherton@bcgov.net
FME performed on-call construction observation and documentation during Beaufort County’s Dirt Road Paving Program 50A, which includes 
three roads for a total length of 2.4 miles. FME provided a Senior Project Manager to attend the pre-construction meeting and final inspection for 
each roadway, as well as SCDOT-certified inspectors to observe the contractor’s grade work and placement of asphalt surface course.
Beaufort County is currently underway with Dirt Road Paving Program 51A. This program includes the paving of four roads totaling 1.6 miles. 
FME was part of the selected design-build team for the project. FME was responsible for providing geotechnical explorations and reports for 
each roadway in the program. FME will be providing on-call testing and inspection during construction of each roadway.

168

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 13

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

SEPI, INC.

PAVEMENT CONDITION SURVEY DATA COLLECTION 2020 | Wake Forest, NC Ongoing
Jonathan Jacobs, PE, Transportation Engineer | Town of Wake Forest | (919) 435-9441 | jjacobs@wakeforestnc.gov
SEPI provided all labor, equipment, and engineering supervision necessary to conduct a PCS for all asphalt pavement street segments within 
the corporate limits of the Town. This consisted of all owned/maintained streets by the Town which was over 100 centerline miles. SEPI also 
provided QA/QC through field inspection and follow-up throughout the project. The Long-Term Pavement Performance (LTPP) PCS Rating 
Method recommended by the FHWA was used to collect the following distresses: structural (alligator) cracking, transverse cracking, block 
cracking, patching/potholes, surface defects (raveling), rutting/roughness, and reflecting cracking. All data was collected and compiled into 
a comprehensive summary report that provided a PCI Rating for each street segment and an overall PCI Rating for the whole street system. 
SEPI utilized the results of the pavement condition survey to develop a total pavement management plan (preventative maintenance, pavement 
preservation, pavement rehabilitation and reconstruction) for the Town. Recommended maintenance activities blended treatment applications 
from each of the plan components in a manner that improved the overall condition of the Town’s streets while maximizing available funding.
PAVEMENT CONDITION SURVEY | Pembroke, NC 2020
Tyler Thomas, Town Manager | Town of Pembroke | (910) 521-9758 | tyler@pembrokenc.com
SEPI provided all labor, equipment, and engineering supervision necessary to conduct a PCS for the Town’s street system and developed 
maintenance recommendations for treatments on each street. SEPI evaluated and collected distress data for 144 street segments. The Long-
Term Pavement Performance (LTPP) PCS Rating Method recommended by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) was used to collect 
the following distresses: fatigue cracking, transverse cracking, block cracking, patching/potholes, raveling/oxidation, and rutting/roughness. 
All data was collected and compiled into a comprehensive summary report that provided a PCI Rating for each street segment and an overall 
PCI Rating for the whole street system. To preserve pavement and improve the overall condition of Town roads, SEPI recommended a mix 
of rehabilitation and preventative maintenance activities as the “best fit” pavement management plan for the Town. As a deliverable, SEPI 
developed recommendations for the Town’s 2020-21 Pavement.
PAVEMENT CONDITION SURVEY + CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN | Franklinton, NC 2019
Greg Bethea, Town Manager | Town of Franklinton | (919) 494-2520 | gbethea@franklintonnc.us
SEPI was selected by The Town of Franklinton to conduct a pavement condition survey (PCS) on the Town’s street system and to develop a 
pavement management plan. A one-week schedule was set to ride the roads for collecting data and data input. The work was completed in less 
than three days. Ratings were given to each road (based on the data) from poor to good. Both rehabilitation and preventive maintenance options 
were proposed by SEPI. Maintenance strategies and priorities were discussed with the Town. SEPI developed three Capital Improvement Plan 
options for the Town streets utilizing different treatment options and overlays. 

FUGRO

SCDOT PROFESSIONAL PAVEMENT DATA COLLECTION SERVICES | Statewide, SC Ongoing
Chad Rawls, PE, Pavement Management Engineer | SCDOT | (803) 737-1469 | rawlscl@scdot.org
Fugro conducted automated pavement management data collection for over 38,000 lane miles of roadways in South Carolina for the Department 
of Transportation since 2018.  Each year Fugro collects approximately one half of the state’s pavement network which includes interstate, 
primary, and secondary routes.  The project includes providing right of way images from multiple front viewing cameras delivered as stitched a 
panoramic image. 
CITY PROFESSIONAL PAVEMENT DATA COLLECTION SERVICES | San Jose, CA Ongoing
Frank Farshidi, Ph.D., PE, Division Manager | City of San Jose, CA | (408) 794-1945 | frank.farshidi@sanjoseca.gov
Fugro conducted automated pavement condition evaluations for the City’s 2800-mile road network using the ARAN. Fugro utilized the City’s 
roadway segment GIS file to create a routing package for data collection, enabling all collected pavement condition data to be linked to the 
City’s GIS system. Collected data included ROW and pavement images, roadway distresses according to ASTM D6433, and dual-wheel path 
roughness data to International Roughness Index (IRI) standards. Using the ARAN collected ROW data, Fugro located and characterized 
over 30,000 ADA ramps in the City. This data was used to create a City-wide ADA ramp GIS inventory and served as a guide for on-site field 
compliance measurements at all locations. 
CITY PROFESSIONAL PAVEMENT DATA COLLECTION SERVICES | Missouri City, TX 2019
Shashi Kris Kumar, PE, Public Works Director | City of Missouri, TX | (281) 403-8579 | shashi.kumar@missouricitytx.gov
Fugro conducted automated pavement condition evaluations for the City’s 600-mile road network using the ARAN. Prior to conducting the 
pavement condition survey, Fugro utilized the City’s roadway segment GIS file to create a routing package for data collection, enabling all 
collected pavement condition data to be linked to the City’s GIS system. Collected data included ROW and pavement images, roadway distresses 
according to ASTM D6433, and dual-wheel path roughness data to International Roughness Index (IRI) standards. Using the roadway distress 
data, Fugro calculated a Pavement Condition Index (PCI) score for all road sections and developed a 5-year treatment workplan for the City.

169

Item 11.



F&ME Consultants, Inc.  ►  Proposal #121720E PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL  ► Page 14

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY APPROACH WORK PLAN & 

SCHEDULING
EXPERIENCE & 

QUALIFICATIONS
EXCEPTIONS & 

CLARIFICATIONS FORMS

1. As shown in the included Gantt chart schedule the FME/SEPI team will submit the prioritized five-year fiscally 
constrained pavement preservation plan for county and municipal roads to the County 6 months from the notice 
to proceed. Recommendations and deliverables regarding the pavement maintenance management software 
will be submitted no more than 1 month after the submission of the prioritized five-year fiscally constrained 
pavement preservation plan.

2. The collection of pavement condition data on Daufuskie Island will not be obtained utilizing automated equipment 
due to the risk of transporting the automated equipment to the Island. This pavement condition data will be 
collected manually.

3. Fee proposal for county/municipal roads is based upon a minimum of 240 centerline miles of roads.

4. Fee proposal for SCDOT Secondary Routes is based upon a minimum of 390 centerline miles of roads.

  E. EXCEPTIONS & CLARIFICATIONS

170

Item 11.



FORMS

171

Item 11.



RFP #121720E DOCUMENTS Page  29 

Beaufort County 
Purchasing Department 

Offer Form 
Request for Proposal Title: _______________________________________ 

RFP Notice Number:  ________________________________________________ 

The undersigned on behalf of the entity, firm, company, partnership, or other legal entity listed below offers 
on its behalf to Beaufort County a RFP that contains all terms, conditions, specifications and amendments 
in the Request for Proposal (RFP) issued by the County listed above.  Any exception to the terms contained 
in the RFP must be specifically indicated in writing and are subject to the approval of the County prior to 
acceptance.  The signature below certifies your understanding and compliance with the terms and conditions 
contained in this RFP.   

Consultant (Firm) Name: _________________________________________ 

Federal Tax ID Number: ______________________________________ 

Mailing Address:  ____________________________________ 

City, State, Zip Code: ____________________________________ 

Telephone Number:  (                    ) ________________________) 

Fax Number:   (                    ) ________________________) 

E-Mail Address:   

__________________________________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 

__________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name and Title 

Date________________________________ 

Roadway Pavement Condition Survey

121720E

F&ME Consultants, Inc.

61-1725606

PO Box 5855

Columbia, SC 29250

803 254-4540

803 254-4542

sepps@fmeconsultants.com

Shawn Corey Epps, Vice President

12/16/2020

172

Item 11.



RFP #121720E DOCUMENTS Page  30 

PROPOSAL AND CERTIFICATION
RFP NO.    __________ 

PAGE  1 of        3 

Addendum  No. ____ Dated ________         Addendum  No. ____ Dated ________ 
Addendum  No. ____ Dated ________         Addendum  No. ____ Dated ________ 

The undersigned     ,         having carefully examined the 
(Name of Consultant / Firm) 

Information contained in the Beaufort County RFP Number #___________________________ 
Dated             , 2020, proposes to provide engineering and consulting services to Beaufort County 
Government, as outlined in this RFP. 

In compliance with the Request for Proposals #______________, and subject to all conditions thereof, the 
undersigned agrees: 

(a) This RFP, as stated, is open for acceptance for a period of 90 calendar days from the date of opening;
and 

(b) To furnish all services, materials, and equipment necessary and incidental to perform the subject
services. 

CERTIFICATION 

State whether or not your company has been involved in any litigation within the past five (5) years, arising 
out of your performance by indicating        

 ___YES OR ___NO 

(If you indicated “YES”, explain fully in a separate attachment)  

HAS A FEDERAL AGENCY OR A FEDERALLY CERTIFIED STATE OR LOCAL AGENCY 
PERFORMED ANY REVIEW OF YOUR ACCOUNTS OR RECORDS IN CONNECTION WITH ANY 
GRANT OR CONTRACT WITHIN ANY GRANT OR CONTRACT WITHIN THE PAST TWELVE 
MONTHS?   

 ___YES OR ___NO 

 (IF “YES” GIVE NAME, ADDRESS, AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF REVIEWING OFFICE 
IN A SEPARATE ATTACHMENT)  

121720E

December 16

F&ME Consultants, Inc.

11/20/201
2 12/4/20

121720E

121720E

173

Item 11.



RFP #121720E DOCUMENTS Page  31 

RFP NO.     

PAGE     2     of       3 

This RFP is submitted for use in connection with and in response to Beaufort County RFP # 
_____________.  This is to certify, to the best of my knowledge and belief, that the information summarized 
herein are complete, current, and accurate as of ____________, 2019, and that a financial accounting 
capability exists to fully and accurately account for the financial transactions under this project.  

This RFP is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connections with any corporation, firm, or 
person submitting a RFP for the same service and is in all respect fair and without collusion or fraud.  I 
agree to abide by all conditions of this RFP and certify that I am authorized to sign this RFP. 

Signature of Consultant’s Representative authorized to enter into contract with Beaufort County Council: 

FIRM NAME:  

BY:  DATE: 
            (Signature) 

TYPE/PRINT: 
 (Name) (Title) 

ADDRESS: 
            (Street Address and/or P. O. Box Number) 

         (City)                 (State)    (Zip Code) 

PHONE:    (      )         FAX: (     ) 
 (Area Code) Phone Number          (Area Code) Fax Number 

EMAIL:  

FEDERAL ID#: S.C. TAX #:

121720E

121720E

December 16, 2020

F&ME Consultants, Inc.

12/16/2020

Shawn Corey Epps, Vice President

1825 Blanding Street / PO Box 5855 (29250) 

Columbia SC 29201

803 254-4540 803 254-4542

61-1725606

sepps@fmeconsultants.com

174

Item 11.



RFP #121720E DOCUMENTS Page  32 

RFP NO.     

PAGE       3     of   3     

IS YOUR FIRM: 1.SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP_____YES ______NO 
2. PARTNERSHIP  _____YES ______NO 
3. CORPORATION  _____YES ______NO

IF COMPANY IS A SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP, LIST THE OWNER’S FULL LEGAL NAME: 
 

IF COMPANY IS A PARTNERSHIP, LIST THE PARTNERS’ FULL LEGAL NAMES: 

IF COMPANY IS A CORPORATION, LIST THE FULL LEGAL NAME, AS LISTED ON THE 
CORPORATE CHARTER: 
 

IS THIS FIRM A MINORITY, OR WOMAN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE? 

            YES   NO  IF YES, SPECIFY:             MBE       WBE 

HAS THIS FIRM BEEN CERTIFIED AS A MINORITY/WOMAN-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 
BY ANY GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY?                YES                  NO 

IF YES, SPECIFY GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY:  

DATE OF CERTIFICATION:  

121720E

N/A

N/A

F&ME Consultants, Inc.

175

Item 11.



LITIGATION HISTORY 
 
F&ME CONSULTANTS, INC. (FME)  
 
The following is FME’s litigation history over the past five years: 
 

Parties Involved: Fountain Pointe Property Owners Association Inc, plaintiff, et al VS Tangent 
Development LLC, defendant, et al 

Geographical Location:  Horry County, SC 
Current Status: Settled in Mediation in 2017 
General Narrative of the Subject of the Lawsuit: FME Consultants, Inc. was a named defendant in a 

construction defect case 
 
Parties Involved: Barnwell VS SCDOT, Site-Prep, FME, et al 
Geographical Location:  Hampton County, SC 
Current Status: Settled 2020 
General Narrative of the Subject of the Lawsuit: A pedestrian was injured on a project construction 

site where FME was preforming work. 
 
Parties Involved: Fairfield Commerce Center VS Wiley Easton Construction 
Geographical Location:  Fairfield County, SC 
Current Status: Active – In Mediation 
General Narrative of the Subject of the Lawsuit: Third party defendant in a construction dispute. 

176

Item 11.



  STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

ROY COOPER 
GOVERNOR 

J. Eric Boyette
  SECRETARY 

 November 17, 2020 

Mr. James S. Kelleher 
Controller
F & ME Consultants 
3112 Devine Street,
Columbia, SC 29205

RE:     Approved Overhead Rates and Certification of Costs for FYE 12/31/19

Dear Mr. Kelleher:

North Carolina DOT has reviewed the FYE 12/31/19 Indirect Cost Schedule as completed by 
Markham and Associates PC and certification of Final Indirect Costs. 

The following rates have been approved for FYE 12/31/19:

Home Rate 250.18%   Field Rate 158.50%  Cost of Capital Rate 1.132%

North Carolina DOT approved these rates after performing a Risk Assessment. 

Acceptance of your overhead rates does not constitute “establishment of a rate by
a cognizant agency” for the purposes of applying the rules published in Title 23, CFR 
§172.7. NCDOT retains the right to audit the above rates or adjust them should a cognizant
approval occur after this date. This approval letter was prepared for, and is intended for the use of
NCDOT and its sub-recipients. This letter will be provided to other governmental entities
upon request, in accordance with 23 U.S.C. §112(b)(2)(E).

As a reminder, audit reports or indirect cost schedules must be certified and submitted annually 
within 180 days of the end of the firm’s fiscal year. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me at 
919-707-4582 or by e-mail at lwraynor@ncdot.gov.

Sincerely,

Lonnetta Raynor, Manager  
Consultant, Utility, Rail and Turnpike 

Mailing Address: 
NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL C.U.R.T
1507 MAIL SERVICE CENTER 

RALEIGH, NC 27699-1507 

Telephone: (919) 707-4582 

Fax: (919) 715-2710 

Customer Service:  1-877-368-4968 

Website: www.ncdot.gov 

Location: 

1 SOUTH WILMINGTON 

STREET RALEIGH, NC 27601 

177

Item 11.

mailto:lwraynor@ncdot.gov
http://www.ncdot.gov/


1 of 2 
 

EXHIBIT G – FEE PROPOSAL 

Pavement Condition Survey – RFP 121720E 
 

Proposer:________________________________________Date:_____________ 

 

1. Pavement condition survey, pavement quality indexing (PQI) and summary of findings. Beaufort 
County and Municipal roadways ONLY. 

$________________________________ 
 
 
 

2. Evaluate roadway pavement maintenance and preservation methods for all roads and prepare a 
roadway priority list. Beaufort County and Municipal roadways ONLY. 
 

$________________________________ 
 
 
 

3. Establish a five-year fiscally restrained pavement maintenance and preservation program. Beaufort 
County and Municipal roadways ONLY. 

 

$________________________________ 
 

ALTERNATE COSTS:  
Pavement condition survey, pavement quality indexing (PQI) and summary of findings. SCDOT 
Secondary Routes ONLY. 

 
Alternate A1: To be completed concurrent with Beaufort County and Municipal roadways 

            
       $________________________________ 
 

Alternate A2: To be completed within ____________ calendar days after Beaufort County and 
Municipal roadways are complete. 

            
       $________________________________ 
 
 

147,700.00

57,400.00

67,300.00

335,500.00

175

271,400.00

12/16/2020F&ME Consultants, Inc.

178

Item 11.



2 of 2 
 

EXHIBIT G – FEE PROPOSAL 

Pavement Condition Survey – RFP 121720E 
 

Proposer:__________________________________________Date:____________ 

 
 
 

Alternate B: Evaluate condition of pavement markings and RPM’s on Beaufort County and 
Municipal roads Only. Per item #9 Scope of Services. 

            
       $________________________________ 
 
 

 

 

 

Fee Proposal:    Include a summary of hourly rates and reimbursable costs. DO NOT submit Fee Proposal(s) 
with Electronic Proposal Response. It must be a separate electronic file. The fee proposal will not be part 
of the ranking.  

F&ME Consultants, Inc. 12/16/2020

60,300.00

179

Item 11.



Hourly Rates 

2020 - 2021

Classification Hourly Rate 

Principal ...............................................................................$200 

Project Manager .................................................................$175 

Assistant Project Manager ...............................................$180 

Senior Pavement Technical Resource  ..........................$195 

Pavement Technical Resource ........................................$185 

GIS.........................................................................................$155 

Clerical/Administrative .....................................................$65 

180

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of Award for IFB #121020E Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 4 ($1,607,321) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee - February 16, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, ACA -Engineering 

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

A pavement condition report was prepared by F&ME Consultants dated July 19, 2017. This report 
serves as a basis for evaluating pavement maintenance and preservation methods for Beaufort 
County roadway network. On December 10, 2020, Beaufort County received two bids for IFB 
#121020E, and of the two Eurovia Atlantis Coast, LLC, DBA Blyth was the lowest most responsive 
bidder for the project. 

Item was approved at the County Transportation Committee Meeting January 20, 2021. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

On December 10, 2020, Beaufort County received two bids for IFB #121020E, Beaufort County Road 
Resurfacing Year 4; Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe and APAC-Atlantic, Inc. Analysis of the 
bids submitted revealed Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe the lowest, most responsive bidder. 
A summary of the bid is as follows: 

1. Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe: $1,391,619.00 

2. APAC-Atlantic, Inc.: $1,740,608.00 

Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe is the lowest, most responsive bidder and is under the 
engineer’s estimate of $1,774,595.00. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe grand total including alternate is $1,391,620.00. With a 5% 
contingency of $76,539.00 and FDP Allowance of $139,162.00, the total project cost is 
$1,607,321.00. The funding for the project is Beaufort County Transportation C Funds with a current 
balance of $2,540,713.00. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends the award of IFB #121020E Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 4 to Eurovia 
Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of award for Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 4 IFB 
#121020E to Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe. 

(Next Step – Upon approval, move forward to County Council on 2/22/21 for consideration of 
award) 

 181

Item 12.



 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
CAPITAL PROJECTS DEPARTMENT 

2266 Boundary Street, Beaufort, South Carolina 29902 
Post Office Drawer 1228, Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228 

Telephone: 843-255-2700 Facsimile: 843-255-9420 
Website: www.beaufortcountysc.gov 

  
 
TO:  Chairman Kraig Gordon, Beaufort County Transportation Committee  
 
FROM:  Andrea Atherton, Beaufort County Capital Projects Director 
 
SUBJ:  Recommendation of Award to Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe   

Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 4 IFB #121020E 
       
DATE:  January 15, 2021 
 
BACKGROUND A pavement condition report was prepared by F&ME Consultants dated July 19, 2017. This report serves as a 
basis for evaluating pavement maintenance and preservation methods for Beaufort County roadway network. Based on this report, 
the following roads were identified in the year 4 paving plan: 
 

1. Project #1 – Micro Surfacing – Sherington Drive, Plantation Park Drive, Pin Oak Street, Ninth Avenue, Foreman 
Hill Road and Murray Drive 

2. Project #2 – Mill and HMA Overlay – Evan Way, Marsh Road, Natures Way, Goethe Road, Cherokee Farms Road 
and Palmetto Business Park 

3. Project #3 – HMA Overlay – Beachwood Drive, Korber Court, Johnson Road, Old Salem Road, Lake Linden 
Drive, Rooksbridge Drive, Paige Drive, Skoshi Court, Pony Avenue, Sunny Place and Rivers Hill Road 

4. Project #4 – Preventative Maintenance Thin Lift – Sawmill Forest Drive 
 
An Engineer’s estimate was prepared based on the costs of the completed Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 3 
project. A summary of the estimate is as follows: 
 
Total Estimated Project Cost:        $1,774,595.00 
 
 
BIDDER INFORMATION  
 
On December 10, 2020, Beaufort County received two bids for IFB #121020E, Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 4; Eurovia 
Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe and APAC-Atlantic, Inc. Analysis of the bids submitted revealed Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, 
DBA Blythe the lowest, most responsive bidder. A summary of the bid is as follows: 
 
Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe:     $1,391,619.00 
APAC-Atlantic, Inc:              $1,740,608.00  
  
Of the Total Estimated Project, $139,162 is Full Depth Patch (FDP) Allowances established for the Owners benefit and will be paid 
only for materials actually used for allowance items.   

 
FUNDING Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe grand total including alternate is $1,391,620.00. With a 5% contingency of 
$76,539.00 and FDP Allowance of $139,162.00, the total project cost is $1,607,321.00.  
 
The funding for the project is Beaufort County Transportation C Funds with a current balance of $2,540,713.00.    
   
FOR ACTION Beaufort County Transportation Committee Meeting January 20, 2021. 
 
RECOMMENDATION Staff recommends award to Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe.    
   
 
Attachments: 1. Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, DBA Blythe. Bid Tab 
                      2. Beaufort County Engineer’s Estimate 

  
 

182

Item 12.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

12/10/2020

Project Name: Year 4 Road Resurfacing
Project Number: OFB 121020E
Project Budget:
Bid Opening Date: 10-Dec-20
Time: 3:00:00 PM
Location: Beaufort County
Bid Administrator: Dave Thomas
Bid Recorder: Victoria Moyer

The following bids were received for the above referenced project:

BIDDER 
BID     

FORM BID   BOND

ALL 
ADDE
NDA

SCH OF 
VALUES

SUB 
LISTING SMBE DOCS Grand Total Price 

APAC - Atlantic X X X X X X
1,740,608.00$                                                              

Eurovia Atlantic DBA Blythe X X X X X X 1,391,619.90$                                                              

Bid Administrator Signature Bid Recorder

Beaufort County posts PRELIMINARY bid tabulation information within 2 business days of the advertised bid opening.  Information on the PRELIMINARY bid 
tabulation is posted as it was read during the bid opening.  Beaufort County makes no guarantees as to the accuracy of any information on the PRELIMINARY 

tabulation.  The bid results indicated here do not necessarily represent the final compliance review by Beaufort County and are subject to change. After the review, 
the final award will be made by Beaufort County Council and a certified bid tab will be posted online. 

183

Item 12.



184

Item 12.



185

Item 12.



186

Item 12.



187

Item 12.



188

Item 12.



189

Item 12.



190

Item 12.



191

Item 12.



192

Item 12.



193

Item 12.



194

Item 12.



195

Item 12.



IFB #121020E 38 

Good Faith Efforts Checklist 

This form and supporting documents are due with the bid package, if not self-performing 100% of the work. 

☐ Include copies of the written notice to SMBs notifying them of bid opportunities. Notices only need to be sent
to those subcontractors and suppliers offering the services which the bidder intends to subcontract and
purchase. Notices can be e-mailed or faxed. If emailed, the notice may be sent to all applicable subcontractors
with one email. If faxed, include a copy of the fax transmittal confirmation slip.
The notice should contain the following:
• Bidder’s name and contact information
• Project name and number
• Scope of work/bid packages available for subcontracting
• Information on availability of plans and specifications
• Bidder’s insurance, bonding, and financial requirements

☐ Include Exhibits 1, 2 and 3, with all requested supporting documentation, where applicable. These exhibits
are available on the Beaufort County website (www.beaufortcountysc.gov) under the Purchasing Department
page.

The undersigned acknowledges making a good faith effort to comply with the above areas checked. 

__________________________________________________________________ 
Name of Company 

__________________________________________________________________ 
Owner or Authorized Representative Name 

__________________________________________________________________ 
Signature 

__________________________________________________________________ 
Title 

__________________________________________________________________ 
Dat

X

Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, dba Blythe

Jason M  Ferrell 

Beaufort Area Manager

12/10/2020

196

Item 12.

http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


 

Revised April 2019 

Exhibit 1 
Non-Discrimination Statement 

 
This form is due with the bid package. 

 
The bidder certifies the following: 
 

 No person shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefit of, or otherwise discriminated against on the 
basis of race, color, national origin, age, sex/gender, disability, religion, language, or income in connection with any 
bid submitted to Beaufort County or the performance of any contract resulting thereof; 
 

 That it is and shall be the policy of the bidder to provide equal opportunity to all businesses or persons seeking to 
contract or otherwise interested in contracting with the bidder for Beaufort County contracts, including those 
businesses owned and controlled by socio-economic and racial minorities; 

 

 In connection herewith, we acknowledge and warrant that this bidder has been made aware of, understands, and 
agrees to take affirmative action to provide such companies with the maximum practicable opportunities to do 
business with this bidder; 

 

 That this promise of non-discrimination as made and set forth herein shall be continuing in nature and shall remain in 
full force and effect without interruption throughout the life of the referenced contract with Beaufort County; 

 

 That the promises of non-discrimination as made and set forth herein shall be and are hereby deemed to be made a 
part of and included by reference into any contract or portion thereof which this bidder may hereafter obtain and; 

 

 That the failure of this bidder to satisfactorily discharge any of the promises of non-discrimination as made and set 
forth herein shall constitute a material breach of contract entitling Beaufort County to declare the contract in default 
and to exercise any and all applicable right and remedies including, but not limited to cancellation of the contract, 
termination of the contract, suspension and debarment from future contracting opportunities, and withholding 
and/or forfeiture of compensation due and owning on a contract. 

 
Name of Company 

 

 
Owner or Authorized Representative Name 

 

 
Signature of Owner or Authorized Representative 

 

 
Title 

 

 
Date 

 

 

Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, dab Blythe

Jason M Ferrell

Beaufort Area Manager

12/10/2020

197

Item 12.



Beaufort County SMB Provisions EXHIBIT 2
Outreach Documentation Log

Bidder Name:

Name of SMB

Source, e.g. 
OSMBA or 
SCDOT, if 
applicable

City State Trade/Commodity
Email/Fax Sent 

e.g. Email
Response, e..g No Response, Will 

Quote, Will Not Quote
Result, e.g. Accepted, 

Not Included

G & J Trucking, LLC OSMBA Hilton Head SC Haul email will quote accepted
Delta Diva Trucking, LLC OSMBA Beaufort SC HAul email will quote accepted

 

Representative Name: Title:

Signature: Date:

The undersigned confirms contacting the above listed SMBs regarding subcontracting and/or purchase opportunities for the referenced contract.

Jason M Ferrell Beaufort Area Manager

12/10/2020

LIST INFORMATION FOR THE SMBs YOU CONTACTED FOR INTEREST AND POTENTIAL PARTICIPATION IN THE REFERENCED PROJECT:

Bid No.:
Bid Date:
Project Name:

Eurovia Atlantic Coast LLC, dba Blythe
121020E
12/10/2020
Beaufort County Roads Resurfacing Year 4

198

Item 12.



Beaufort County SMB Provisions EXHIBIT 3
Proposed Utilization Plan

Bidder Name:
Bid No.:
Bid Date:
Project Name:

Name of SMB Firm City State Tel # with Area Code Point of Contact Trade/Commodity Contract/PO Amount
G&J Trucking LLC Hilton Head SC 843-227-4197 Edith Smith Haul 8,400.00$                       

-$                                
-$                                
-$                                
-$                                
-$                                
-$                                
-$                                

Total Anticipated SMB 
Particiation Dollar 
Value 8,400.00$                       

Representative Name: Title: Beaufort Area Manager

Signature: Date: 12/10/2020

Jason M Ferrell

of a contract with Beaufort County for the referenced project.

Euvoriva Atlantic Coast LLC, dba Blythe
121020E
12/10/2020
Beaufort County Roads resurfacing Year 4

The undersigned proposes to enter into a formal agreement with the SMBs identified for work and value listed conditioned upon execution 

LIST INFORMATION FOR THE SMBs YOU INTEND TO UTILIZE FOR THE REFERENCED PROJECT:

199

Item 12.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Memorandum of Agreement between Beaufort County and the Town of Hilton Head Island (ToHHI) for the 
Summit Drive/Gateway Circle traffic improvement project (41,066.60) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – February 16, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator 

David Wilhelm, Special Projects Director 

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Beaufort County operates a solid waste and recycling convenience center on property owned by the ToHHI.  
Summit Drive is a two lane paved road that provides access not only to the convenience center but also to 
many businesses.  The very high volume of vehicles using the convenience center causes traffic problems on 
Summit Drive. 

The ToHHI completed a design to realign Summit Drive that will create a bypass around the convenience 
center.  This new alignment will allow traffic to flow unimpeded around the center.  The current Summit Drive 
pavement will remain, serving as an access road dedicated solely for users of the convenience center. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Beaufort County staff and the ToHHI staff worked together to divide the work.  The County will be responsible 
for tree removal, land clearing and grubbing, all earthwork including excavation, importing fill, and furnishing, 
placement and compaction of the graded aggregate roadway base.  The ToHHI will be responsible for 
surveying, materials testing, traffic control, concrete work, pavement removal, placement of the new asphalt 
paving, pavement striping, signage, and landscaping. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Beaufort County Public Works staff will perform the work.  The estimated time to complete the work is 3 – 5 
working days.  The County will purchase approximately 950 tons of stone at a cost of $41,066.60.  Funding 
will be from TAG Fees. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval and execution of the Memorandum of Agreement between Beaufort County and 
the Town of Hilton Head Island (ToHHI) for the Summit Drive/Gateway Circle traffic improvement project. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny the Memorandum of Agreement between Beaufort County and the Town of Hilton 
Head Island (ToHHI) for the Summit Drive/Gateway Circle traffic improvement project. 

(Next step - Forward to County Council for consideration to approve the Memorandum of Agreement 
between Beaufort County and the Town of Hilton Head Island (ToHHI) for the Summit Drive/Gateway Circle 
traffic improvement project.) 

 
200

Item 13.



 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA    ) 

      ) MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

      )  

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT   )  
 

 

 

 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ___ day of _________, 2020 by 

and between the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina, (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Town”), and Beaufort County, South Carolina (hereinafter referred to as the “County”). 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town and County propose to jointly construct, reconstruct, alter, or 

improve segments of Summit Drive and Gateway Circle to improve traffic flow and facilitate 

the proposed decal checking operations at the Hilton Head Island Convenience Center, 

known as the Summit Drive Re-Alignment Project (“Project”); and 

 

  WHEREAS, the County adopted Resolution 2020-0## on October ##, 2020 to 

implement a new decal admittance system to allow Hilton Head Island property owners two 

visits to the Convenience Center per week and this new system is to become effective on at 

the Hilton Head Island Convenience Center on March 1, 2021; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town and County recognize the need for timely coordination of 

this Project to implement it in time for the proposed changes to the operations of the Hilton 

Head Island Convenience Center; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Town requests the transfer of 0.461 acres of County land and 0.185 

acres of Temporary Construction Easements to facilitate the permitting and construction of 

the Project; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town and County desire to formalize an Agreement wherein the 

County shall donate to the Town two County owned parcels (0.342 acre parcel R510 008 

000 0160 0000 and 0.261 acres of parcel R510 008 000 0370 0000) upon which the Project 

will be constructed and the Town shall maintain thereafter; and  

  

WHEREAS, in return for this transfer of land as required for the project permitting, 

construction and future maintenance, the Town will provide all necessary costs of the survey, 

design and certain portions of construction of the Project, while the remaining portions of 

construction services will be performed by the County; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town reserves the right to control the final design of the roadway 

alignment;  

 

201

Item 13.



 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the below listed agreement is established to better serve the 

needs of the Town and the County with respect to the construction of the Project and the 

operations of the Hilton Head Island Convenience Center. 

 

 

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS 
  

A. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE - An employee of entity who is authorized in 

writing by that government to request, offer, or provide assistance under the terms of this 

Agreement.  The list of authorized representatives for the participating government 

executing this Agreement shall be attached as Exhibit A and shall be updated as needed 

by each participating government. 

 

B. PROJECT – Summit Drive Re-Alignment Project.   The scope of work which the Town 

and County shall jointly agree upon, the Town shall design and permit, and the Town 

and County shall jointly construct as depicted on the construction plans and specifications 

attached as Exhibit B  

 

 

SECTION 2 - PROCEDURES 

 

A. COMMUNICATIONS:  The Town’s primary point of contact shall be the Town 

Engineer and the County’s primary point of contact shall be the County’s Special Project 

Manager.  Electronic mail may be used to document directives and actions. 

 

B. LAND TRANSFER – To accommodate the new Town roadway, the Town requests the 

County convey in a fee simple transfer to the Town, the two affected parcels R510 008 

000 0370 0000 (0.261 acres of vacant, forested land, with a current County appraised 

value of $49,700.00) and R510 008 000 0160 00000000 (0.341 acres of vacant, forested 

land, with a current County appraised value of $56,900.00) as depicted in Exhibit C.  The 

Town Attorney will provide the legal description and transfer documents to both County 

and Town Councils for consideration.   Upon County Council approval of the land 

transfer and Town Council approval to accept it, the Town Attorney shall record the deed 

and transfer agreement with the Register of Deeds.  There will also be temporary 

construction easements needed from the main airport parcel - R510 008 000 0085 0000.  

The Town will provide a Temporary Construction Easement agreement and exhibit for 

the County to execute. 

 

C. PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION – The Town shall be responsible for all survey, design, 

permitting, easement acquisition, contract procurement, and inspection of the Project, 

and a portion of the construction, and in doing so shall meet all applicable local, state and 

federal standards.  The County shall be responsible for a portion of the construction as 

defined in section 2.D. below.  The Project will consist of design practices and materials 

consistent with other recent Town roadway projects.  The Town shall be responsible for 

funding any enhancements beyond minimum design and safety standards, including 

202

Item 13.



landscaping, decorative features, widened pavement sections, etc.  The Town shall 

budget for the Project and procure all necessary professional and construction services to 

fully implement. 

 

D. CONSTRCUTION RESPONSIBILITIES – In accordance with the approved plans and 

specifications (Exhibit B), the Town shall be responsible for  

 

1. Procuring surveying data,  

2. construction staking,  

3. materials testing,  

4. traffic control,  

5. concrete work,  

6. pavement removal,  

7. asphalt paving,  

8. pavement markings,  

9. signs,  

10. ground stabilization, and  

11. landscaping;  

 

And the County shall be responsible for: 

 

1. tree removal,  

2. clearing and grubbing,  

3. all earthwork including excavation, importing fill material, fine grading, and  

4. placement and compaction of the graded aggregate roadway base.   

 

 

E. INSPECTIONS – The Town shall inspect the work of the County and of its contractors 

to ensure that it complies with the plans, specifications and permit conditions.  The Town 

will procure all necessary materials testing associated with the project.  The Town will 

notify the County when the Project is completed, so that the County may inspect the work 

if they desire, to verify that the project has been satisfactorily completed. 

 

F. COMPENSATION – The Town shall follow its Procurement Code for contracting 

professional and its portion of construction services necessary to complete the Project.  

Contracts or job orders for these services shall be negotiated by the Town in the best 

interest of the Town and County and the Town shall be solely responsible to compensate 

its contractors with appropriated funds and seek no reimbursements from the County.  

The County shall provide Project compensation in the form of in-kind services, its portion 

of the construction, and the transfer of land and temporary construction easements.  The 

County shall be responsible for all non-Project costs associated with implementing the 

decal operations.   

 

G. SCHEDULE – Both parties shall make substantive efforts to meet the March 1, 2020 

Project milestone schedule as outlined in Exhibit D.  The Town shall address project 

funding needs, procure survey and other design data, complete the design, obtain all 

203

Item 13.



necessary permits and contract for construction services and the County shall provide 

Public Works forces and procure necessary construction materials to meet the schedule.   

 

 

SECTION 3 - INSURANCE  

  

Each Party to this agreement shall bear the risk of its own actions, as it does with its day-to-

day operations, and determine for itself what kinds of insurance, and in what amounts, it 

should carry. If a Party to this agreement is insured, its file shall contain a letter from its 

insurance carrier authorizing it to provide and receive assistance under this Agreement, and 

indicating that there will be no lapse in its insurance coverage, either on employees, vehicles, 

or liability. If a Party to this agreement is self-insured, its file shall contain a copy of a 

resolution authorizing its self-insurance program. A copy of the insurance carrier’s letter or 

the resolution of self-insurance shall be attached to the executed copy of this Agreement. 

Each party shall be solely responsible for determining that its insurance is current and 

adequate prior to providing assistance under this Agreement.  

 

SECTION 4 - LIABILITY  

 

To the extent permitted by law, and without waiving sovereign immunity, each Party to this 

Agreement shall be responsible for any and all claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, and 

causes of action related to or arising out of or in any way connected with its own actions, and 

the actions of its personnel, in providing mutual aid assistance rendered or performed 

pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

 

SECTION 6 - TERM  

 

This Agreement shall be in effect for six (6) months upon approval by both Parties and upon 

proper execution thereof and is renewed automatically in successive one (1) year terms until 

the Project is completed or unless terminated by mutual agreement of both parties.  A request 

for termination requests must be provided to the other Party not less than sixty (60) days in 

advance of the desired termination date.  Notice of termination shall not relieve the 

withdrawing Party from obligations incurred hereunder prior to the effective date of the 

mutually agreed upon termination date. 

 

 

SECTION 7 - SEVERABILITY: EFFECT ON OTHER AGREEMENTS  

 

Should any portion, section, or subsection of this Agreement be held to be invalid by a court 

of competent jurisdiction, that fact shall not affect or invalidate any other portion, section or 

subsection; and the remaining portions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and affect 

without regard to the section, portion, or subsection or power invalidated.   

 

In the event that any parties to this Agreement have entered into other mutual aid agreements 

or inter-local agreements, those parties agree that said agreements are superseded by this 

Agreement only for emergency management assistance and activities performed in major 

204

Item 13.



disasters, pursuant to this Agreement. In the event that parties to this Agreement have not 

entered into another mutual aid agreement, and the parties wish to engage in mutual aid, then 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply unless otherwise agreed between 

those parties. 

 

1. This document expresses the entire agreement of the parties. Any amendment or 

modification to this Agreement must be in writing and executed by both parties. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Hilton Head Island, South Carolina and Beaufort 

County, South Carolina, by and through their duly authorized officers have set their hands 

and seals on this _____day of _____2020.  

 

 

WITNESSES:      BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

______________________     By: ___________________________ 

 

______________________     Its: County Administrator 

 

 

WITNESSES:     TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 

______________________     By: __________________________ 

 

______________________     Its: Town Manager 

  

205

Item 13.



EXHIBIT A 

 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES 

 

 

 

An employee of entity who is authorized in writing by that government to request, offer, or 

provide assistance under the terms of this Agreement.  The list of authorized representatives 

for the participating government executing this Agreement is provided below, with the 

primary points of contact, and shall be updated as needed by each party. 

 

  

 

The Town’s Primary Point of Contact is: 

 

 

The County’s Primary Point of Contact is: 

Jeff Buckalew, P.E. 

Town Engineer  

Town of Hilton Head Island 

One Town Center Court 

Hilton Head Island, SC  29928 

Desk Phone:   (843)341-4772 

Cell Phone:  (843)384-5142 

Email:  jeffb@hiltonheadislandsc.gov 

 

David Wilhelm, PE,  

Special Projects Manager 

Beaufort County 

104 Industrial Village Road (BIV-3) 

Beaufort, SC  29906 

Desk Phone:   (843)255-2940 

Cell Phone:  (843) 

Email:   dwilhelm@bcgov.net 

The Town’s Authorized Representatives are: The County’s Authorized Representatives are: 

Jeff Buckalew, P.E. 

 

David Wilhelm, PE 

Scott Liggett, P.E. 

Director for Public Projects and 

Facilities/Chief Engineer 

Cell Phone:  (843) 384-8765   

scottl@hiltonheadislandsc.gov 

 

Jared Fralix, PE   

Assistant County Administrator 

(843) 255-2730 

Steve Riley, ICMA-CM     

Town Manager 

(843) 341-4701 

Interim 

County Administrator 

(843) 255-2055 

 

  

  

  

206

Item 13.



EXHIBIT B 

 

PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 

(Initially Attach Concept Plans – Final Plans and Specifications to be attached once 

completed and permitted, via an amendment to the MOA) 

  

207

Item 13.



EXHIBIT C 

 

RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION 

PLAT and LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

  

208

Item 13.



 

EXHIBIT D 

 

PROJECT MILESTONE SCHEDULE 

 

 

10-23-20 Town Staff to Procure Survey and Design data 

 

10-26-20 Public Discussion of Project Need and Intent with Town Council 

(Community Services and Public Safety committee) 

 

11-9-20 County Council Discuss/Agree to Transfer Land and Easements to the Town 

(1st Reading) * or have the PFC act on this item first at their 11/16/20 Meeting 

 

11-17-20 Town Council Appropriate Project Funding via Budget Amendment and 

Agree on Land Transfer (1st Reading) 

 

11-18-20 Town Staff to Obtain Public Project Review Approval from the Town 

Planning Commission 

 

12-1-20 Town Council Appropriate Project Funding via Budget Amendment and 

Agree on Land Transfer (2nd Reading) 

 

12-14-20 County Council Discuss/Agree to Transfer Land and Easements to the Town 

(2nd Reading) 

 

11-25-20 Town Staff to Complete Project Design and Specifications 

 

12-4-20 Town Staff to Obtain Town Development Plan Review Permit 

 

12-7-20 County Staff Begin Construction 

 

1-8-21  County Staff Complete their Portion of Construction 

 

1-11-21 Town Contractor Begin Work on Town Portion of Construction 

 

2-26-21 Town Contractor Complete Work on Town Portion of Construction 

 

3-1-21 County Begin Decal Checkpoint Operations at Hilton Head Island 

Convenience Center 

 

209

Item 13.



210

Item 13.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of award of the Security Gate Upgrades at the Hilton Head Island Airport ($70,751.91) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – February 16, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E. ACA – Engineering   

Jon Rembold, C.M. Airports Director (Alternate) 

(5 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This item was presented to the Airports Board on January 21, 2021. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

This project provides upgrade to the manual drive through gates located on Hilton Head Airport. The  
MEDIVAC gate upgrade provides automatic entry for first responders when conducting 
 Life Flight operations. With the addition of the Airport Security office to 14 Hunter Road, an automatic 
 security gate satisfies the requirement for an automatic, monitored video and controlled key pad entry for  
personnel requiring badging and entry to the airport. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Bullzeye Equipment & Supply, LLC provided a bid of $61,523.40 to complete the Hilton Head Airport Gate 
Upgrades. With a 15% contingency of $9,188.01, the total cost of the project is $70,751.91. Project funding 
includes 90% FAA Airport Improvement Program Funds (Grant 40), 5% SCAC Grant Funds, 5% Airport Funds. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COMMITTEE: 

Staff recommends award of Security Gate Upgrades to Bullzeye Equipment and Supply, LLC. 
 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of award of the Security Gate Upgrades at the Hilton Head Airport 
to Bullzeye and Supply, LLC.  

(Next Step – Council Approval not required due to cost. If approved, staff to execute contract to begin 
project.) 

 

211

Item 14.



212

Item 14.



213

Item 14.



214

Item 14.



215

Item 14.



216

Item 14.



217

Item 14.



218

Item 14.



219

Item 14.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

12/29/2020

Project Name:
Hilton Head Airport Security Medical 
Evacuation and Administration Gates

Project Number: IFB 121620
Project Budget:
Bid Opening Date: 29-Dec-20
Time: 8:31am
Location: Beaufort County
Bid Administrator: Dave Thomas
Bid Recorder: Victoria Moyer

The following bids were received for the above referenced project:

BIDDER 
BID     

FORM
BID   

BOND/SURITY

ALL 
ADDE
NDA

SCH OF 
VALUES

SUB 
LISTING SMBE DOCS Grand Total Price 

Bullzeye Equipment
See note Page 1 

of their bid' X

61,523.40$                                                                   

Safeway Signaling
Letter of Intent in 

Liu of Surety X 77,599.61$                                                                   

Securitas X X 87,846.40$                                                                   

TSC X X 44,832.69$                                                                   

Beaufort County posts PRELIMINARY bid tabulation information within 2 business days of the advertised bid opening.  Information on the PRELIMINARY bid tabulation 
is posted as it was read during the bid opening.  Beaufort County makes no guarantees as to the accuracy of any information on the PRELIMINARY tabulation.  The bid 
results indicated here do not necessarily represent the final compliance review by Beaufort County and are subject to change. After the review, the final award will be 
made by Beaufort County Council and a certified bid tab will be posted online. 

220

Item 14.

jrembold
Typewritten Text
TSC is a subcontractor working with Securitas which causes their combined bid to be the highest.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

12/29/2020

Bid Administrator Signature Bid Recorder

221

Item 14.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation to Award Access Control and Security Cameras Contract for New Arthur Horne ($92,274.07) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee February 16, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator – Engineering 

Andrea Atherton, Capital Projects Department 

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

CodeLynx Software and Security is on the South Carolina State Contract for AV products and services along 
with security, CCTV and access control services.  

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

This project consists of furnishing and installing access control devices (card readers, magnetic locks, electric 
strikes etc.) and security cameras, as designed, throughout the new Arthur Horne building.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

CodeLynx Software and Security proposes a cost totaling $80,238.32. With a 15% contingency ($12,035.75) 
the total project cost is $92,274.07. The funding source is the 2020 GO Bond with a current balance of 
$1,318,061.41. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends award to CodeLynx Software and Security. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve / deny recommendation of award for access control and security cameras for the new 
Arthur Horne building to CodeLynx Software and Security. 

 

(Next step: Award amount is less than $100,000, therefore; does not need County Council approval. Staff to 
execute contract with Codelynx Software and Security ) 

 

222

Item 15.



4400018573

4400018261

4400018261

Project Quote Number:

New Admin Building Quote Date: 2/1/2020

Rev. No. 4

Rev .Date 1/22/2021

Designer/Consultant Prepared By: Sam

Sam Hocutt Reviewed By:

Part Number QTY Description Price Each Total
Camera 1

2.0C-H5A-DO1 1
3.0 Megapixel WDR, LightCatcher, Day/Night, Outdoor Dome, 

3-9mm f/1.3 P-iris lens, Self-Learning Video Analytics
672.60$              672.60$            

Camera 2

2.0C-H5A-DO1 1
3.0 Megapixel WDR, LightCatcher, Day/Night, Outdoor Dome, 

3-9mm f/1.3 P-iris lens, Self-Learning Video Analytics
672.60$              672.60$            

H4-BO-JBOX1 1
3.0 Megapixel WDR, LightCatcher, Day/Night, Outdoor Dome, 

3-9mm f/1.3 P-iris lens, Self-Learning Video Analytics
63.72$                63.72$              

Camera 3

2.0C-H5A-DO1 1
3.0 Megapixel WDR, LightCatcher, Day/Night, Outdoor Dome, 

3-9mm f/1.3 P-iris lens, Self-Learning Video Analytics
672.60$              672.60$            

Camera 4

24C-H4A-3MH-270 1 3x 3 MP, WDR. LightCatcher™, 2.8mm, Camera Only 1,486.80$           1,486.80$         

H4-MT-CRNR1 1
Corner mount adapter for use with CM-MT-WALL1, H4A-MT-

WALL1,  H4-BO-JBOX1, H4SL, H4F and H4 PTZ cameras.
63.72$                63.72$              

IRPTZ-MNT-WALL1 1 Mount, Pend wall, IR PTZ 67.26$                67.26$              

H4AMH-AD-PEND1 1

Outdoor pendant mount adapter, must order one of IRPTZ-

MNT-WALL1 or IRPTZ-MNT-NPTA1 and one of H4AMH-DO-

COVR1 or H4AMH-DO-COVR1-SMOKE. 

113.28$              113.28$            

H4AMH-DO-COVR1 1
Dome bubble and cover, for outdoor surface mount or pendant 

mount, clear. 
113.28$              113.28$            

H4AMH-AD-IRIL1 1
Optional IR illuminator ring, up to 30m (100ft), for use with 

H4AMH-DOCOVR1
233.64$              233.64$            

POE-INJ2-95W-NA 1 Single Port PoE Injector Gigabit, 95W, NA power cord 283.20$              283.20$            

Camera 5

4.0C-H5A-D1 1
3.0 MP, WDR, LightCatcher, Day/Night, Indoor Dome, 2.8mm 

f/1.2
666.94$              666.94$            

SC Security, CCTV and Access Control 

SC AV products and services

4937 Fargo Street, North Charleston, SC 29418 Tel 843.266.2330 Fax 843.266.2333 www.codelynx.com

South Carolina State Contract 

NC Security, CCTV and Access Control 

Beaufort County

Proposed System Pricing Summary 

Prepared for

Mark

223

Item 15.



Camera 6

4.0C-H5A-D1 1
3.0 MP, WDR, LightCatcher, Day/Night, Indoor Dome, 2.8mm 

f/1.2
666.94$              666.94$            

Camera 7, 8 ,9, 10, 11, 12,13

12.0-H4F-DO1-IR 6
12.0 MP, Fisheye Camera, Day/Night, 1.45mm f/2.2, 

Integrated IR
764.64$              4,587.84$         

Camera 14 

6.0C-H5A-BO1-IR 1
3.0 Megapixel WDR, LightCatcher, 3-9mm f/1.3 P-iris lens, 

Integrated IR, Self-Learning Video Analytics
909.78$              909.78$            

H4-BO-JBOX1 1
Junction box for the H4A HD Bullet, H4SL HD Bullet, or H4 

Thermal cameras.
63.72$                63.72$              

Camera 15 

8.0C-H5A-BO1-IR 1
4K UHD (8.0 Megapixel), 4.3-8mm f/1.8 P-iris lens, Integrated 

IR, Self-Learning Video Analytics
1,062.00$           1,062.00$         

H4-BO-JBOX1 1
Junction box for the H4A HD Bullet, H4SL HD Bullet, or H4 

Thermal cameras.
63.72$                63.72$              

Camera 16, 17

12.0-H4F-DO1-IR 2
12.0 MP, Fisheye Camera, Day/Night, 1.45mm f/2.2, 

Integrated IR
764.64$              1,529.28$         

POE-INJ2-PLUS-NA 2 Single port POE+ injector 53.10$                106.20$            

Server and Camera licenses 

ACC7-ENT 17 ACC 6 Enterprise license for up to 16 camera channels 205.32$              3,490.44$         

RM5-WKS-2MN-NA 1
Avigilon Control Center Professional high performance remote 

monitoring workstation for up to 2 monitors, NA power cord
1,416.00$           1,416.00$         

M2324-NA 2
Monitor, 24", LCD, 2.3 Megapixel, 16:10 Widescreen Aspect 

Ratio - NA
290.28$              580.56$            

M4K32-NA 1
Monitor, 32" LCD 4K UHD, 16:9 Widescreen Aspect Ratio - 

NA
1,536.36$           1,536.36$         

M300 3
Heavy-Duty, Full Motion Articulating TV Wall Mount for 32-

inch to 80-inch LED, LCD, Flat Screen TVs
115.00$              345.00$            

PT3-00001 1 Microsoft Wireless keyboard and mouse 41.70$                41.70$              

Misc installation material and cable for the ACS system 

Misc Material 1 Misc installation material 75.40$                75.40$              

HYP UTP4-C6-SOLID-

CMR-BL-305
4 CAT6 CMR 4pr 550MHz BLU 1000ft 133.40$              533.60$            

 Access Control  

Access Control Headend 

AC-LSP-16DR-MER-

LCK
1

Sixteen Door Mercury Dual Voltage Integrated Power System 

supporting one AC-MER-CONT-2DR with seven AC-MER-

CON–MR52 (Mercury hardware sold separately). 

800.04$              800.04$            

AC-LSP-8DR-MER-

LCK
1

Sixteen Door Mercury Dual Voltage Integrated Power System 

supporting one AC-MER-CONT-2DR with seven AC-MER-

CON–MR52 (Mercury hardware sold separately). 

502.68$              502.68$            

AC-MER-CONT-

LP1502
1

Controller, 16MB RAM, Ethernet, 8In/4Out/2Rdr (Mercury  

Part Number: EP1502)
906.24$              906.24$            

AC-SW-LIC-16RCU-6-

P
2 Licenses 589.76$              1,179.53$         

AC-MER-CON-MR52 8
2-Reader Interface Module - (2 reader: mag or wiegand, 8 

inputs, 6 relays)(Mercury  Part Number: MR52)
499.14$              3,993.12$         

Door 102A

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

224

Item 15.



8320 DSS X 28 1

Electromagnetic Lock, Double, 1500 Lb Holding Force, 12/24 

Volt DC, 21" Width x 1-5/8" Depth x 2-7/8" Height, Brushed 

Anodized Aluminum, With Status Sensor

586.65$              586.65$            

FB20 X 28 1 8320 FILLER BAR X28 1/4X3/4X21 33.90$                33.90$              

KAN-TREXLT 1  REQUEST to EXIT MOTION DET 59.30$                59.30$              

SS2488EX-EN 1
Stopper Station, Blue, Flush Cover, Universal Stopper, Label 

Shell, Pneumatic
196.62$              196.62$            

Elevator 1 

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Elevator 2

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Court Room 1 107A

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

8320 DSS X 28 1

Electromagnetic Lock, Double, 1500 Lb Holding Force, 12/24 

Volt DC, 21" Width x 1-5/8" Depth x 2-7/8" Height, Brushed 

Anodized Aluminum, With Status Sensor

586.65$              586.65$            

FB20 X 28 1 8320 FILLER BAR X28 1/4X3/4X21 33.90$                33.90$              

KAN-TREXLT 1  REQUEST to EXIT MOTION DET 59.30$                59.30$              

SS2488EX-EN 1
Stopper Station, Blue, Flush Cover, Universal Stopper, Label 

Shell, Pneumatic
196.62$              196.62$            

Court Room 2 108A

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

8320 DSS X 28 1

Electromagnetic Lock, Double, 1500 Lb Holding Force, 12/24 

Volt DC, 21" Width x 1-5/8" Depth x 2-7/8" Height, Brushed 

Anodized Aluminum, With Status Sensor

586.65$              586.65$            

FB20 X 28 1 8320 FILLER BAR X28 1/4X3/4X21 33.90$                33.90$              

KAN-TREXLT 1  REQUEST to EXIT MOTION DET 59.30$                59.30$              

SS2488EX-EN 1
Stopper Station, Blue, Flush Cover, Universal Stopper, Label 

Shell, Pneumatic
196.62$              196.62$            

Door 127

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Door 101

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Door 130

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

1600-CS-630 1
XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
344.51$              344.51$            

Door 128

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Door 123B

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Door S102

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Door 118

225

Item 15.



AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Door 117

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Door 116

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Door 115

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Door 114

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Door 113

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Door 112

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Second Floor Access  control panel 

AC-LSP-8DR-MER-

LCK
1

Sixteen Door Mercury Dual Voltage Integrated Power System 

supporting one AC-MER-CONT-2DR with seven AC-MER-

CON–MR52 (Mercury hardware sold separately). 

502.68$              502.68$            

AC-MER-CONT-

LP1502
1

Controller, 16MB RAM, Ethernet, 8In/4Out/2Rdr (Mercury  

Part Number: EP1502)
906.24$              906.24$            

AC-MER-CON-MR52 2
2-Reader Interface Module - (2 reader: mag or wiegand, 8 

inputs, 6 relays)(Mercury  Part Number: MR52)
499.14$              998.28$            

209A

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

209B

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

207

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

213

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

221

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

Third Floor Access  control panel 

AC-LSP-8DR-MER-

LCK
1

Sixteen Door Mercury Dual Voltage Integrated Power System 

supporting one AC-MER-CONT-2DR with seven AC-MER-

CON–MR52 (Mercury hardware sold separately). 

502.68$              502.68$            

AC-MER-CONT-

LP1502
1

Controller, 16MB RAM, Ethernet, 8In/4Out/2Rdr (Mercury  

Part Number: EP1502)
906.24$              906.24$            

AC-MER-CON-MR52 2
2-Reader Interface Module - (2 reader: mag or wiegand, 8 

inputs, 6 relays)(Mercury  Part Number: MR52)
499.14$              998.28$            

313

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

226

Item 15.



302

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

326A

AC-ING-READ-

XCEEDID-PROX
1

XceedID - 125 kHz Proximity - Mini Mullion Reader(Allegion 

Part Number: PR10)
106.20$              106.20$            

First Floor Panic Buttons 

3045-W 11 PANIC SURF MNT SPST W/TM 12.01$                132.11$            

E2004S 2 4 COND 22 AWG OAS RISER RATED 1000' 157.61$              315.22$            

AC-MER-CON-

MR16IN
1

16 Zone Input Monitor Module (with 2 relays)(Mercury  Part 

Number: MR16in)
566.40$              566.40$            

Second and Third floor Panic buttons 

3045-W 3 PANIC SURF MNT SPST W/TM 12.01$                36.03$              

E2004S 1 4 COND 22 AWG OAS RISER RATED 1000' 157.61$              157.61$            

AC-MER-CON-

MR16IN
1

16 Zone Input Monitor Module (with 2 relays)(Mercury  Part 

Number: MR16in)
566.40$              566.40$            

Misc installation material and cable for the camera system 

ADC 9940 5 CMP Access Control 18/4 22/3PR 22/2 22/4 711.08$              3,555.40$         

Misc Supplies 10 1 Misc installation material 377.00$              377.00$            

SUBTOTAL $45,755.44

TAX: $3,202.88

SOFTWARE & HARDWARE TOTAL: $48,958.32

ENGINEERING, SURVEY, INSTALLATION & LABOR TOTAL: $31,280.00

SHIPPING: $0.00

SYSTEM TOTAL: $80,238.32

Network supplied by customer. Door Hardware and locks supplied by customer. Server supplied by customer

NOTES:

Price Quotes are valid for 30 days

Scope of Work: 

Install Wire and cameras. Install readers and wire door hardware to access control system. Install remote monitor for check in area

Exclusions: 

227

Item 15.



COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

106 Industrial Village Road 
Post Office Drawer 1228

Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228

BUDGET CONFIRMATION FORM

Thank you for your request. Prior to any work being done on your request and the solicitation
going public, the following information is REQUIRED.

Type of Goods or Services needed with a general description:

Estimated Project Cost:  

Account Number / Name Fund / Account Balance

Comments:

Department Head: Gregg Hunt,

Department's Name:  

Submitter:   Date/Time: 

Quote - Natular XRT Tablets (Clarke) 
for Mosquito Control.01-08-21.pdf 
211.42 KB

Sole Source Document - Natular XRT 
Tablets (Clarke) for Mosquito 
Control.01-08-21.pdf 
170.57 KB

No file attached

Department Head Review and Sign:

Mosquito Control requests the purchase of a public health insecticide (100 cases) used to control mosquito breeding 
throughout the underground stormwater systems.  These mosquitoes are potential vectors of West Nile virus.  Staff will 
apply the product from April to June 2021 throughout the entire County.  Since 2004, these treatments represent the 
most important pro-active strategy to minimize the risk of West Nile virus.

$92,693.45

10001400 / 52320 Public Health Products 314,197

The vendor offers a 15.0% discount and free shipping for our bulk quantity purchase with a savings of 
$15,890.60.

ghunt@bcgov.net

Mosquito Control

ghunt 01/08/2021 8:23:23 AM

Page 1 of 2Budget Confirmation - Budget Confirmation submitted by ghunt - Mosquito Control - 20...

1/14/2021http://bcweb/PUR/_layouts/Print.FormServer.aspx

228

Item 16.



Department Head Signature     Date/Time: 

Finance Decision:   

Confirmed Account:    Approved        Rejected        On Hold

Authorized Finance Signature:    Date/Time: 

Purchasing Decision:

Approved Rejected        On Hold

Authorized Purchasing Signature:   Date/Time: 

ghunt 01/08/2021 8:23:23 AM

Comments:

raymond.williams 1/14/2021 2:31:06 PM

Comments:

dthomas 1/14/2021 2:33:22 PM

Page 2 of 2Budget Confirmation - Budget Confirmation submitted by ghunt - Mosquito Control - 20...

1/14/2021http://bcweb/PUR/_layouts/Print.FormServer.aspx

229

Item 16.



Helping make communities around the world more livable, safe and comfortable.

// COPY //
Page:

1(1)

Valid toWritten byQuotation # Quote Date Salesperson

Delivery Method Terms

Item # Item Description Qty Ordered Unit Price Extended Price

675 Sidwell Ct
St Charles, IL 60174

U.S.A.
www.clarke.com

TOLL-FREE:  800-323-5727

PH:  630-894-2000
FAX:  630-443-3070

EMAIL:customercare@clarke.com

* For your convenience we also accept Visa and MasterCard

Clarke will charge applicable sales taxes unless a valid exemption certificate is Emailed to: accountsreceivable@clarke.com or faxed to: 630-672-7439

843-846-1633    
843-719-4646    

QUOTATION

Beaufort County M.C.D. (B11310)B
I
L
L

T
O

S
H
I
P

T
O

Elizabeth Hager               

843-255-5800    
                

Address ID:

* A 15% restocking fee plus freight costs may be assessed to any returned items.
 Items must be returned within 120 days of shipment and in an acceptable condition.

Greg Hunt
84 Shanklin Rd

Beaufort, SC 29906-8427

12/31/21Jamie Dunn0002025195 01/04/21

Best Way

Sydney Brogden

39 Airport Circle

Beaufort, SC 29907-1523

000000

Beaufort County M.C.D.

Net 30 Days

11850            100           1,025.2000NATULAR XRT TABLET            86,629.40cs cs/

** Extended Price reflects a discount of:            15,890.60
US EPA Current Label

6,064.05Tax:
92,693.45Order total
92,693.45Total

230

Item 16.

andresen.everett
Highlight



 

 

Corteva Agrisciences 
Agriculture Division of DowDuPont 
9330 Zionsville Road  Indianapolis, IN 46268  USA   Tel 317 337 4337    www.corteva.com 

 
 

 

December 3, 2020 

 

 

To whom it may concern, 
 

Please allow this letter to confirm that Corteva has granted Clarke Mosquito Control Products, Inc. 

exclusive rights to market its active ingredient spinosad for mosquito larval control products in the US 

territories, Caribbean and Cayman Islands for 2021.  Corteva understands that spinosad is utilized in 

Clarke’s Natular G, Natular G30, Natular G30 WSP, Natular T30, Natular XRT, Natular 2EC and Natular DT 

products. 

Please let me know if you need further details. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Lisa Bostock 

Global Business Development Leader 

Corteva Agrisciences 

lisa.bostock@corteva.com 

317-670-4408 

 

 

231

Item 16.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Request to purchase insecticide for mosquito control ($92,693.45) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee; February 16, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator - Engineering 

2-4 minutes needed 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Mosquito Control requests approval for the purchase of a public health insecticide (Natular XRT) used to 
control mosquito breeding throughout the underground stormwater systems. These mosquitoes represent 
potential vectors of West Nile virus. Clarke Mosquito Control Products, Inc. is the sole source vendor for 
Natular XRT. 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

To purchase 100 cases of insecticide (Natular XRT) from Clarke Mosquito Control Products, Inc. This vendor 
offers a 15% discount and free shipping for our bulk quantity purchase, which is a savings of $15,890.60. 
Product will be applied April to June 2021 to the underground stormwater system throughout the entire 
County.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Total quoted purchase cost: $92,693.45. 

Funding source: Mosquito Control Public Health Products general fund account 10001400-52320 with a 
current balance of $314,197.00. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval to purchase insecticide from Clarke Mosquito Control Prodcuts, Inc. 

 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny the purchase of a public health insecticide (Natular XRT) from sole source vendor 
Clarke Mosquito Control Products, Inc. in the amount of $92,693.45. 

(Next Step – Council Approval not required due to cost. If approved, staff to execute purchase.) 

  

 
232

Item 16.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of Award for IFB #010821 – Evergreen Regional Pond ($746,602.88) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – February 16th, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, ACE – Engineering    

Neil Desai, P.E  - Public Works Director (Alternate) 

(5 min) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

November 28, 2018 - Grant awarded to Beaufort County 
December 11, 2020 – IFB posted on Vendor Registry  
February 10th, 2021 – Presented at the Stormwater Utility Board Meeting 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

As development pressures increase in the County, there is a continuous need to protect our creeks and rivers 
in the area. Therefore, Beaufort County Stormwater applied and received a Federal 319 Grant in an 
agreement with SC Department of Health and Environmental Control (DHEC) to build a Stormwater pond 
upstream of the Okatie River to treat runoff from Highway 170. Beaufort County Stormwater has 
recommended the contract for construction be awarded to CBG, Inc. the lowest, most responsible bidder. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

CBD, Inc. provided a bid of $678,729.89. With a 10% contingency of $67,872.99, the total project cost is 
$746,602.88. Funding for the project will include a DHEC grant of $229,124.00. The remaining funding will 
come from budgeted construction funds from the Stormwater Utility Fund that currently has a balance of 
$840,000. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends the award of IFB #010821 – Evergreen Regional Pond to CBD, Inc. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of award for IFB#010821 – Evergreen Regional Pond to CBD, Inc.  

 

(Next Step – Upon approval, move forward to County Council on 2/22 for consideration of award) 

 

 

233

Item 17.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

Project Name: Evergreen Regional Pond

Project Number: IFB 010821

Project Budget:

Bid Opening Date: 8-Jan-21

Time: 3:00PM

Location: Beaufort County Purchasing Department

Bid Administrator: Dave Thomas

Bid Recorder: Victoria Moyer

The following bids were received for the above referenced project:

BIDDER 

BID     

FORM

BID   

BOND

ALL 

ADDE

NDA

SCH OF 

VALUES

SUB 

LISTING SMBE DOCS Grand Total Price 

CBG X X X X X 678,729.89$                                                                 

Cleland Site Prep X X X X X X 797,839.50$                                                                 

JR Wilson Construction Co. Inc. X X X X X X 694,982.00$                                                                 

Gulf Stream Construction Company, Inc. X X X X X X 1,920,236.29$                                                              

JS Construction Services Inc. X X X X X X 836,072.00$                                                                 

Sandhill ALS Construction Inc. X X X X 78 X 1,219,065.00$                                                              

L-J Inc. X X X X 923,390.50$                                                                 

Victoria Moyer

Bid Administrator Signature Bid Recorder

Beaufort County posts PRELIMINARY bid tabulation information within 2 business days of the advertised bid opening.  Information on the PRELIMINARY bid 

tabulation is posted as it was read during the bid opening.  Beaufort County makes no guarantees as to the accuracy of any information on the PRELIMINARY 

tabulation.  The bid results indicated here do not necessarily represent the final compliance review by Beaufort County and are subject to change. After the 

review, the final award will be made by Beaufort County Council and a certified bid tab will be posted online. 

1/26/2021
234

Item 17.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE: 

APPROVAL OF REAPPOINTMENT

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

 FEBRUARY 16, 2021
2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN  LAWSON 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

BEAUFORT COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE FOR REAPPOINTMENT OF JOSEPH STROMAN,JR. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

CONSIDERATION OF REAPPOINTMENT FOR JOSEPH STROMAN, JR. FOR THE BEAUFORT COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATON COMMITTEE

FISCAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

APPROVE, MODIFY OR REJECT 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

MOTION TO (APPROVE, MODIFY, REJECT) REAPPOINTMENT FOR JOSEPH STROMAN, JR. TO BEAUFORT 
COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE TO MOVE FORWARD TO COUNTY COUCIL FOR FINAL APPROVAL.

• 3rd TERM - DISTRICT 1
o 1st YEAR - 2015
o 2nd YEAR - 2017

• MEMBERS SERVE THE SAME TERM AS THE APPOINTED COUNCIL MEMBER - DISTRICT 1 G. DAWSON
EXPIRES ON 2024

235

Item 19.



Joseph Stroman 
 

 

October 26, 2020 

Joseph Passiment, Chairman 
Beaufort County Council 
P.O. Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, SC 29901-1228 

Chairman Passiment: 

This is a statement to verify the intention that I, Joseph Stroman, am seeking reappointment, from 

the County Transportation Committee. This will go into effect on February 2021. 

 Sincerely, 

Joseph Stroman 

236

Item 19.



COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT ROBERT SMALLS COMPLEX 
100 RIBAUT ROAD 

POST OFFICE DRAWER 1228 
BEAUFORT, SOUTH CAROLINA 29901-1228 

TELEPHONE:  (843) 255-2000 
FAX:  (843) 255-9401 

www.bcgov.net 
 
 

D. PAUL SOMMERVILLE 
           CHAIRMAN 
 
GERALD W.  STEWART 
      VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
        ____________ 
 
CYNTHIA M. BENSCH 
RICK CAPORALE 
GERALD DAWSON 
BRIAN E. FLEWELLING 
STEVEN G. FOBES 
ALICE G. HOWARD 
WILLIAM L. MCBRIDE 
STEWART H. RODMAN 
ROBERTS “TABOR” VAUX 

     

 
 
 
 

 

GARY T. KUBIC 
 COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

_____________ 

JOSHUA A. GRUBER 
DEPUTY COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

SPECIAL COUNSEL 
_____________ 

    THOMAS J. KEAVENY, II 
    COUNTY ATTORNEY 

_____________ 

 SUZANNE M. RAINEY 
CLERK TO COUNCIL 

 

 

December 15, 2015 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Mr. Joseph Stroman, Jr. 

 
 
Re: County Transportation Committee 
 
Dear Mr. Stroman: 
 
It is my very distinct pleasure to advise you that you have been appointed by the Beaufort County 
Council to serve on the County Transportation Committee. 
 
This term will expire February 2017, and we are very appreciative of your willingness to serve.  
Council evaluated a number of applicants, and we feel you will do an excellent job.  
 
Please accept our best wishes as you embark upon your service to Beaufort County on the County 
Transportation Committee.  I ask that you be cognizant of Council’s policy that all members of its 
Boards, Agencies and Commissions attend at least two-thirds of the regular meetings, and we are 
attempting to enforce this policy.  We believe that an effective representative is one who participates 
consistently in the decision-making process.  You will be notified of the next meeting of the County 
Transportation Committee, and I trust you will be able to attend. 
 
Again, thank you for your willingness to serve Beaufort County and its citizens, and please do not 
hesitate to call upon me if I can answer any questions concerning this appointment. 
        

Sincerely, 
 

 
 

D. Paul Sommerville, Chairman 
 
Attachments: Board Membership, Template Ordinance, Enabling Legislation 
cc: Maggie Hickman, Board Administrator 
  

237

Item 19.



COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT ROBERT SMALLS COMPLEX 
100 RIBAUT ROAD 

POST OFFICE DRAWER 1228 
BEAUFORT, SOUTH CAROLINA 29901-1228 

TELEPHONE:  (843) 255-2180 
www.bcgov.net 

 
 

 
 

D. PAUL SOMMERVILLE 
           CHAIRMAN 
 
GERALD W.  STEWART 
      VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
        ____________ 
 
RICK CAPORALE 
MICHAEL E. COVERT 
GERALD DAWSON 
BRIAN E. FLEWELLING 
STEVEN G. FOBES 
YORK GLOVER, SR. 
ALICE G. HOWARD 
STEWART H. RODMAN 
ROBERTS “TABOR” VAUX 

 

GARY T. KUBIC 
 COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

_____________ 

JOSHUA A. GRUBER 
DEPUTY COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

SPECIAL COUNSEL 
_____________ 

    THOMAS J. KEAVENY, II 
    COUNTY ATTORNEY 

_____________ 

 ASHLEY M. BENNETT 
CLERK TO COUNCIL 

 

 

March 29, 2017 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Joseph Stroman, Jr. 

 
 
Re: Reappointment to County Transportation Committee 
 
Dear Mr. Stroman: 
 
It is my very distinct pleasure to advise you that you have been reappointed by the Beaufort County 
Council to serve as a member on the County Transportation Committee.  
  
This will be a four-year term reappointment, which expires February 2021, and we are very 
appreciative of your willingness to serve. 
 
Please accept our best wishes as you continue your service to Beaufort County on the County 
Transportation Committee.  I ask that you be cognizant of Council’s policy that all members of its 
Boards, Agencies and Commissions attend at least two-thirds of the regular meetings, and we are 
attempting to enforce this policy.  We believe that an effective representative is one who participates 
consistently in the decision-making process.   
 
Again, thank you for your willingness to serve Beaufort County and its citizens, and please do not 
hesitate to call upon me if I can answer any questions concerning this reappointment. 
        

Sincerely, 

 
D. Paul Sommerville, Chairman 

 
Attachment:  Board Membership 
 
cc: Kraig Gordon, Chairman 
 Robert McFee, Division Director- Facilities and Construction Engineering  

 

238

Item 19.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE: 

APPROVAL OF REAPPOINTMENT

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

PUBLIC FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING 

 FEBRUARY 16,2021

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN RODMAN 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

BEAUFORT COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE FOR JAMES BACKER

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

CONSIDERATION OF REAPPOINTMENT FOR JAMES BACKER BEAUFORT COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

APPROVE, MODIFY OR REJECT 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

MOTION TO (APPROVE, MODIFY, REJECT) REAPPOINTMENT FOR JAMES BACKER BEAUFORT COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE TO MOVE TO COUNTY COUNCIL FOR FINAL APPROVAL. 

2nd TERM - DISTRICT 5
     1st TERM - 2019 - PARTICAL TERM
MEMBERS SERVE THE SAME TERM AS THE APPOINTED COUNCIL MEMBER (DISTICT 5 B. FLEWELLING) 
EXPIRES 2024

239

Item 20.



240

Item 20.



 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT ROBERT SMALLS COMPLEX 
100 RIBAUT ROAD 

POST OFFICE DRAWER 1228 
BEAUFORT, SOUTH CAROLINA 29901-1228 

TELEPHONE: (843) 255-2180 
www.bcgov.net 

 
 

 
 
 

STEWART H. RODMAN 
          CHAIRMAN 
 
D. PAUL SOMMERVILLE 
      VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
        ____________ 
 
MICHAEL E. COVERT 
GERALD DAWSON 
BRIAN E. FLEWELLING  
YORK GLOVER, SR. 
CHRIS HERVOCHON 
ALICE G. HOWARD 
MARK LAWSON 
LAWRENCE P. MCELYNN 
JOSEPH F. PASSIMENT, JR. 
 

 
ASHLEY M. JACOBS 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
 

SARAH W. BROCK 
INTERIM CLERK TO COUNCIL  

 
 

May 1, 2019 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Jim Backer 
Beaufort County Transportation Committee 

 

 
Re: Appointment to the Beaufort County Transportation Committee 
 
Dear Mr. Backer: 
 
It is my very distinct pleasure to advise you that you have been appointed by the Beaufort County Council to 
serve as a member on the Beaufort County Transportation Committee. 
 
This will be a partial-term appointment, which expires February 2021, and we are very appreciative of your 
willingness to serve.  Council evaluated a number of applicants, and we feel you will do an excellent job.  
 
Please accept our best wishes as you embark upon your service to Beaufort County on the Beaufort County 
Transportation Committee.  I ask that you be cognizant of Council’s policy that all members of its Boards, 
Agencies and Commissions attend at least two-thirds of the regular meetings, and we are attempting to 
enforce this policy. We believe that an effective representative is one who participates consistently in the 
decision-making process.  You will be notified of the next meeting of the Beaufort County Transportation 
Committee and, I trust you will be able to attend. 
 
Again, thank you for your willingness to serve Beaufort County and its citizens, and please call upon me if I 
can answer any questions concerning this appointment. 
        

Sincerely, 

 
Stewart H. Rodman, Chairman 

 
Attachments: Board Membership, Boards/Commissions Ordinance, Enabling Legislation 
cc: Kraig Gordon, Chairman  
 Robert McFee, Division-Director, Facilities and Construction Engineering 
 Diane Telford, Board Liaison 
 Victoria Moyer, Board Liaison 
  

241

Item 20.



Month January February March April May June July August September October November December Total Average
Date 1/15/2020 3/18/2020 5/20/2020 7/15/2020 9/16/2020 11/18/2020
Members
1 Stroman 0 * * * * * 1 * 1 * 1 * 3 75%
2 McCain 1 * * * * * 1 * 1 * 1 * 4 100%
3 Glover 0 * * * * * 1 * 1 * 1 * 3 75%
4 Kozak 1 * * * * * * * 0 * 1 * 2 67%
5 Backer 1 * * * * * 1 * 1 * 1 * 4 100%
6 Forrest 1 * * * * * 0 * 1 * 1 * 3 75%
7 England 1 * * * * * 1 * 1 * 0 * 3 75%
8 Gordon 1 * * * * * 1 * 1 * 1 * 4 100%
9 Hill 1 * * * * * 0 * 1 * 1 * 3 75%
10 Winslow 1 * * * * * 1 * 1 * 0 * 3 75%
11 Graves Sellars 1 * * * * * 0 * 1 * 0 * 2 50%

  1 - Present
  0 - Absent
* No meeting
** Appointed

County Transportation Committee

REPORT TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS BY NOVEMBER 30TH
Attendance 2020

0
2
4
6
8

10
12

N
um

be
r o

f M
ee

tin
gs

Board Members

County Transportation Committee
Attendance - 2020

242

Item 20.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE: 

APPROVAL OF REAPPOINTMENT

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

 FEBRUARY 16, 2021
2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN  LAWSON 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

BEAUFORT COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE FOR REAPPOINTMENT OF STEPHEN HILL. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

CONSIDERATION OF REAPPOINTMENT FOR STEPHEN HILL FOR THE BEAUFORT COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATON COMMITTEE

FISCAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

APPROVE, MODIFY OR REJECT 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

MOTION TO (APPROVE, MODIFY, REJECT) REAPPOINTMENT FOR STEPHEN HILL TO BEAUFORT COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE TO MOVE FORWARD TO COUNTY COUCIL FOR FINAL APPROVAL.

• 2nd TERM - DISTRICT 9
o 1st YEAR - 2018

• MEMBERS SERVE THE SAME TERM AS THE APPOINTED COUNCIL MEMBER - DISTRICT 9 M.LAWSON 
EXPIRES ON 2022 

243

Item 21.



Stephen A. Hill 
D a uf uski e Is l an d  

 

October 25, 2020 

 

To:  Brittanee Fields 
Sr. Administrative Specialist 
Beaufort County Engineering 
2266 Boundary Street 
Beaufort, SC 29901 
 

Via: Mark Lawson 
 Beaufort County Council 

District 9 
 

 
Ms. Fields: 
 This is a statement to verify my intention to seek reappointment to the 
Beaufort County Transportation Committee (CTC) as District 9 representative. My 
current term expires in February 2021. All the information contained in my 
January 21, 2018 application remains current. 
 
 Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 
 
S. A. Hill 

 

 

244

Item 21.



COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT ROBERT SMALLS COMPLEX 
100 RIBAUT ROAD 

POST OFFICE DRAWER 1228 
BEAUFORT, SOUTH CAROLINA 29901-1228 

TELEPHONE:  (843) 255-2180 
www.bcgov.net 

 
 
 
 

 

D. PAUL SOMMERVILLE 
           CHAIRMAN 
 
GERALD W.  STEWART 
      VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
        ____________ 
 
RICK CAPORALE 
MICHAEL E. COVERT 
GERALD DAWSON 
BRIAN E. FLEWELLING 
STEVEN G. FOBES 
YORK GLOVER, SR. 
ALICE G. HOWARD 
STEWART H. RODMAN 
ROBERTS “TABOR” VAUX 

 
JOSHUA A. GRUBER 

 INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
_____________ 

    THOMAS J. KEAVENY, II 
    COUNTY ATTORNEY 

_____________ 

 ASHLEY M. BENNETT 
CLERK TO COUNCIL 

 

 

March 14, 2018 
 
 
 
 

 
Mr. Stephen Hill 
County Transportation Committee 

 
Re: Appointment to County Transportation Committee 
 
Dear Mr. Hill: 
 
It is my very distinct pleasure to advise you that you have been appointed by the Beaufort County 
Council to serve as a member on the County Transportation Committee. 
 
This will be a partial-term appointment, which expires February 2021, and we are very appreciative 
of your willingness to serve.  Council evaluated a number of applicants, and we feel you will do an 
excellent job.  
 
Please accept our best wishes as you embark upon your service to Beaufort County on the County 
Transportation Committee.  I ask that you be cognizant of Council’s policy that all members of its 
Boards, Agencies and Commissions attend at least two-thirds of the regular meetings, and we are 
attempting to enforce this policy. We believe that an effective representative is one who participates 
consistently in the decision-making process.  You will be notified of the next meeting of the County 
Transportation Committee and, I trust you will be able to attend. 
 
Again, thank you for your willingness to serve Beaufort County and its citizens, and please do not 
hesitate to call upon me if I can answer any questions concerning this appointment. 
        

Sincerely, 

 
D. Paul Sommerville, Chairman 

 
Attachments: Board Membership, Template Ordinance, Enabling Legislation 
cc: Kraig Gordon, Chairman 
 Robert McFee, Division Director–Facilities and Construction Engineering 

245

Item 21.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE: 

APPROVAL OF REAPPOINTMENT

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

PUBLIC FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING

 FEBRUARY 16, 2021
2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN RODMAN 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

STORMWATER MANAGMENT UTILITY BOARD FOR REAPPOINTMENT OF MARC FEINBERG, CHAIRMAN

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

CONSIDERATION OF REAPPOINTMENT FOR MARCH FEINBERG FOR THE STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT UTILITY BOARD 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

APPROVE, MODIFY OR REJECT 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

MOTION TO (APPROVE, MODIFY, REJECT) REAPPOINTMENT FOR MARC FEINBERG TO STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT UTILITY BOARD TO MOVE FORWARD TO COUNTY COUCIL FOR FINAL APPROVAL.

• 3rd TERM - STORMWATER DISTRICT #9- UNICORPORATED BLUFFTON TOWNSHIP AND DAUFUSKIE 
ISLAND 

o 1st YEAR - 2014
o 2nd YEAR - 2017

• 4-YEAR TERM FOR VOLUNTEER MEMBERS  

246

Item 22.



1

Vaughn, Tithanie

From: Marc Feinberg 
Sent: Wednesday, February 10, 2021 3:11 PM
To: Vaughn, Tithanie
Cc: Howard, Alice G.
Subject: Storm Water Utility Board

[EXTERNAL EMAIL] Please report any suspicious attachments, links, or requests for sensitive 
information to the Beaufort County IT Division at helpdesk@bcgov.net or to 843-255-7000.  

Dear Ms. Vaughn:  
 I would very much like to continue serving on The Beaufort County Storm Water Utility 
Board for another term. 
I am currently serving as the Board’s Chairman. 
Please let me know if there is anything more formal that I need to complete. 
Again, thank you in advance for your assistance. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
Marc M. Feinberg 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

247

Item 22.



D. PAUL SOMMERVILLE 
CHAIRMAN 

STEWART H. RODMAN 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

CYNTHIA M. BENSCH 
RICK CAPORALE 
GERALD DAWSON 
BRIAN E. FLEWELLING 
STEVEN G. FOBES 
WILLIAM L. MCBRIDE 
GERALD \V. STEWART 
ROBERTS "TABOR" VAUX, JR. 
LAURA L. VON HARTEN 

Mr. Marc Feinberg 
 

  

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

IOORIBAUTROAD 
POST OFFICE ORA WER 1228 

BEAUFORT, SOUTH CAROLINA 29901-1228 
TELEPHONE: (843) 255-2180 

FAX: (843) 255-9401 
ww\v.bcgov.net 

December 9, 2014 

GARY KUBIC 
COUNI"Y ADMINISTRATOR 

JOSHUA A. GRUBER 
DEPU'IY COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

SPECIAL COUNSEL 

SUZANNE M. RAINEY 
CLERK TO COUNCIL 

Re: Stormwater Management Utility Board 

Dear Mr. Feinberg: 

It is my very distinct pleasure to advise you that you have been appointed by the Beaufort County 
Council to serve on the Stormwater Management Utility Board. 

This will be a partial term appointment, which expires February 2017 and, we are very appreciative 
of your willingness to serve. Council evaluated a number of applicants, and we feel you will do an 
excellent job. 

Please accept our best wishes as you embark upon your service to Beaufort County on the 
Stormwater Management Utility Board. I ask that you be cognizant of Council's policy that all 
members of its Boards, Agencies and Commissions attend at least two-thirds of the regular meetings, 
and we are attempting to enforce this policy. We believe that an effective representative is one who 
participates consistently in the decision-making process. You will be notified of the next meeting of 
the Stom1water Management Utility Board, and I trust you will be able to attend. 

Again, thank you for your willingness to serve Beaufort County and its citizens, and please do not 
hesitate to call upon me ifl can answer any questions concerning this appointment. 

Sincerely, 

/'~ 
D. Paul Sommerville, Chairman 

Attachments: Board Membership, Template Ordinance, Enabling Legislation 
cc: Donald Smith, Chaitman 

Eric Larson, Division-Director Environmental Engineering 

248

Item 22.



COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT ROBERT SMALLS COMPLEX 
100 RIBAUT ROAD 

POST OFFICE DRAWER 1228 
BEAUFORT, SOUTH CAROLINA 29901-1228 

TELEPHONE:  (843) 255-2180 
www.bcgov.net 

 
 

 
 

 

D. PAUL SOMMERVILLE 
           CHAIRMAN 
 
GERALD W.  STEWART 
      VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
        ____________ 
 
RICK CAPORALE 
MICHAEL E. COVERT 
GERALD DAWSON 
BRIAN E. FLEWELLING 
STEVEN G. FOBES 
YORK GLOVER, SR. 
ALICE G. HOWARD 
STEWART H. RODMAN 
ROBERTS “TABOR” VAUX 

 

GARY T. KUBIC 
 COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

_____________ 

JOSHUA A. GRUBER 
DEPUTY COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

SPECIAL COUNSEL 
_____________ 

    THOMAS J. KEAVENY, II 
    COUNTY ATTORNEY 

_____________ 

 ASHLEY M. BENNETT 
CLERK TO COUNCIL 

 

 

February 21, 2017 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Marc Feinberg 
 
 

 
Re: Reappointment to Stormwater Management Utility Board 
 
Dear Mr. Feinberg: 
 
It is my very distinct pleasure to advise you that you have been reappointed by the Beaufort County 
Council to serve as a member on the Stormwater Management Utility Board.  
  
This will be a four-year term reappointment, which expires February 2021, and we are very 
appreciative of your willingness to serve. 
 
Please accept our best wishes as you continue your service to Beaufort County on the Stormwater 
Management Utility Board.  I ask that you be cognizant of Council’s policy that all members of its 
Boards, Agencies and Commissions attend at least two-thirds of the regular meetings, and we are 
attempting to enforce this policy.  We believe that an effective representative is one who participates 
consistently in the decision-making process.   
 
Again, thank you for your willingness to serve Beaufort County and its citizens, and please do not 
hesitate to call upon me if I can answer any questions concerning this reappointment. 
        

Sincerely, 

 
D. Paul Sommerville, Chairman 

 
Attachment:  Board Membership 
 
cc: Donald Smith, Chairman 
 Eric Larson, Division-Director, Environmental Engineering and Land Management 

249

Item 22.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL  
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE: 

APPROVAL OF APPOINTMENT S

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

PUBLIC FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING

 FEBRUARY 16, 2021 
2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

COMMITTEE CAHIRMAN RODMAN 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

KEEP BEAUFORT COUNTY BEAUTIFUL BOARD 
FEBRUARY 16, 2021

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL FOR JEFF ALTHOFF FOR KEEP BEAUFORT COUNTY BEAUTIFUL BOARD  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

APPROVE, MODIFY OR REJECT 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

MOTION TO (APPROVE, MODIFY, REJECT) APPROVAL FOR JEFF ALTHOFF TO KEEP BEAUFORT 
COUNTY BEAUTIFUL BOARD TO MOVE TO COUNTY COUNCIL FOR FINAL APPROVAL. 

1st TERM FOR DISTRICT 4
THE 1st TERM OF SERVICE WILL BE 2 YEARS - SECOND TERM OF SERVICE 4 YEARS

250

Item 23.



251

Item 23.



JEFFREY S. ALTHOFF CPCU 

 
 

 

CAREER SUMMARY 

An enthusiastic team player and leader with nearly 30 years of successful insurance sales and 
sales management experience.  Driven by a positive attitude and fostering excellent 
relationships with a proven track record of delivering financial performance and gaining market 
share.  Demonstrated strengths include: 

 Relational selling at all levels
 Developing unique opportunities
 Creative marketing and presentations
 Client relationship management
 Territory development and management

 Team building and planning
 Complex contract negotiations
 Excellent communication and

interpersonal skills
 Highly effective problem solving

Abilities

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

Lowcountry Insurance Services, LLC  2011- Present 
President  

Responsible for all aspects of Sales and Agency Management under the direction of the 
Spartanburg Home Office CEO, Jon Jensen. Manage a team of 15 people.  The employment 
arrangement is a minority member share with salary and producer commission.     

South Carolina Farm Bureau Insurance Co.  2009- 2011 
Agent 

Responsible for producing Property and Casualty as well as Life and Health insurance business 
within Beaufort County, South Carolina.  Farm Bureau is the largest domestic insurance carrier 
in the state and offers a full line of insurance products mostly geared toward families.  The 
employment contract was that of an independent contractor direct agent.   

Zurich Insurance Co. - Direct Markets 2007- 2009 
Account Executive 

A direct agent and producer responsible for territory sales and relationship management in the 
central VA region with focus on Franchise Auto, Motorcycle and RV Dealerships.  Zurich 
provides a complete array of Property & Casualty, as well as F&I products.  Charged to drive 
growth and profitability in the territory while managing planning, marketing, and account 
development.    

252

Item 23.



 
 
 
 
Jeffrey S. Althoff PAGE TWO 

 
Virginia Automobile Dealers Association 1996-2007 
With its expanded services and continued significant legislative activity and representation on 
behalf of 585 Virginia franchised auto and truck dealerships, the VADA distinguishes itself as 
one of the strongest and most influential trade associations in the State. 
 
Director of Insurance Agency Operations 
Directly accountable for revenue and sales management for the Association.  Managed a staff 
of 7 producers and 3 administrative employees.    
 
Insurance Agency Operations 
 Grew agency revenues from $500K commission to over $2M with sales of $40M total 

insurance premiums. 
 Recruited, trained and managed a staff that grew to seven producers. 
 Negotiated product contracts and developed marketing strategies to meet sales objectives. 
 Ensured regulatory compliance for all areas of responsibility. 
 
Self Insured Group Administration 
 Oversaw and managed the VADA Group Self-Insurance Association for Workers 

Compensation Insurance.   
 Grew program by 250% to over 10M sales with 350 franchised dealers insured throughout 

VA. 
 Managed regulatory compliance, TPA performance, actuarial studies and accounting 

statements; producing results consistently exceeding those of the benchmark peer group. 
 Negotiated and purchased reinsurance within budget guidelines. 
 Successfully managed billing, collection and auditing of premiums.  
 
 
 
Lincoln National Corporation. 1986-1996 
American States Insurance Co. 
 
State Sales Manager, Richmond, Virginia      1992-1996 
Directed sales, marketing and account development for 60 insurance agencies located 
throughout the State of Virginia.  Consistently exceeded expectations and goals. 
 
Field Sales Manager, Casper, Wyoming      1988-1992  
Directed sales responsibility for new and existing accounts.  Exceeded sales quota each year in 
territory.  Twice received the President’s sales award for 125% of annual goal production.   
 
Commercial Underwriting Trainee, Denver, Colorado      1986-1988 
Commercial multi line insurance underwriting training program.  
 
 

EDUCATION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, Oklahoma State University 
Chartered Property and Casualty Underwriter Designation (CPCU)  

 
 253

Item 23.


	Top
	Item 5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	AIS-PUBLIC FACILITIES COMMITTEE 01.19.21

	Item 6.	US 278 CORRIDOR UPDATE
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 021621 US 278 Update
	278 Elected Officials Update 2021 02 01

	Item 9.	Renewal of Hilton Head Island Airport Mutual Aid Agreement with the Town of Hilton Head for Coordinated Fire Rescue Services
	AIS - Memorandum of Agreement
	20210108 Hilton Head Airport Mutual Aid Agreemtent - Final v2

	Item 10.	Recommendation of Award for IFB #120820E  Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 4 Asphalt Rejuvenator ($201,366)
	AIS Recommendation of Award Road Resurfacing Year 4 IFB 121020E Rejuvenator doc.
	Recommendation Asphalt Rejuvenator Year 4
	Preliminary Bid Tab
	IFB 120820E Road Resurfacing Yr 4 - Asphalt Rejuvenator - Signed

	Item 11.	Recommendation of Award for IFB#121720E Roadway Pavement Condition Survey
	AIS Recommendation of Award Roadway Pavement Condition Survey IFB  121720E
	Recommendation Roadway Pavement Condition Survey
	RFP 121720E  Roadway Pavement Condition Survey Summary Score Sheet
	FME Proposal 121720E
	FME Fee Proposal Exhibit G

	Item 12.	Recommendation of Award for IFB #121020E Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 4
	AIS Recommendation of Award Road Resurfacing Year 4 IFB 121020E
	Recommendation Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Year 4
	Preliminary Bid Tab
	Road Resurfacting Eurovia Bid

	Item 13.	Memorandum of Agreement between Beaufort County and the Town of Hilton Head Island (ToHHI) for the Summit Drive/Gateway Circle traffic improvement project
	AIS form Summit Dr Feb 16 PFC
	MOA BFT CO_TOHHI_Summit Drive_HHI Convenience Ctr_10-20-20
	Summit Drive Overview Aerial V.2

	Item 14.	Hilton Head Island Airport - Contract Award for Automatic Gates
	AIS - Contract Award for Automatic Gates
	2 BullzEye
	Preliminary Bid Tab Automatic Gate Project

	Item 15.	Recommendation to Award Access Control and Security Cameras for New Arthur Horne
	AIS - PFC 02.16.2021 - Award Code Lynx - Arthur Horne
	New IT Assessors office Mag Court Building R4 1-22-21

	Item 16.	Mosquito Control Purchase Request for Natular XRT
	AIS Clarke Natural XRT
	Clarke AIS Natular XRT purchase 2021

	Item 17.	BCSW - Evergreen Tract Stormwater Best Management Practice
	AIS - CBG Inc. Contract Award (1) (1)
	Preliminary Bids Evergreen 319

	Item 19.	AIS- BEAUFORT COUNTY TRANSPORATION COMMITTEE - STROMAN
	AIS-BEAUFORT COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE -STROMAN

	Item 20.	AIS- BEAUFORT COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE- BACKER
	AIS-CTC BACKER 2.16

	Item 21.	AIS- BEAUFORT COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE - HILL
	AIS-BEAUFORT COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE -HILL

	Item 22.	AIS - STORMWATER - FEINBERG
	AIS-STORMWATER - FEINBERG

	Item 23.	AIS- KEEP BEAUFORT COUNTY BEAUTIFUL BOARD -ALTHOFF
	AIS-KEEP BEAUFORT COUNTY BEAUTIFUL BOARD -ALTHOFF

	Bottom

